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E xecutive Sum m ary 

Investigative A udit R eport 
Tow n of Broussard 

The follow ing sum m arizes the findings and recom m endations as w ell as the Town attorn ey's 
response that resulted from this investigation. Detailed inform ation relating to the findings and 
recom m endations m ay be found at the page num ber indicated. The response signed by 
M r. Gerald deLaunay, Town attorney, m ay be found at Atta chm ent 1. 

M ayor and Form er Superintendent of Streets 
R eceived G ifts From  Tow n V endors 

Finding 

R ecom m endation: 

R esponse: 

(Page 1) 

M r. Charles Langlinais, M ayor of the Town of Broussard 

(Town), and Mr. Mitchel Seimemi, the former Superintendent 
of Streets fox' the Town of Broussard, received equipm ent use 
valued at approximately $24,550 and approximately $69,330 
from CLM  Equipm ent, a vendor of the Town of Broussard. In 
addition, M r. Scim em i received gifts of plumbing supplies and 
appliances amounting to $1,594 from a Town vendor, Coburn's 
W holesale Supply. Finally, M r. Scim em i also received an 
undeterm ined am ount in cash and groceries from Billeaud's 
Superette, a grocer and Town vendor who supplied food for 
w eekly Town luncheons. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent com ply w ith Louisiana law 
and not accept anything of value from Town vendors. If value 
is received fi'om Town vendors, appropriate records should be 
m aintained to support that such w as not a gift and that the 
vendor was appropriately com pensated for the value received. 
W e further recom m end that the District Attorney for the 
Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review this inform ation 
and take appropriate legal action 

M r. Gerald deLaunay, the Town's attorney, responded that 
neither M ayor Langlinais nor M r. Scim em i received gifts of 
free rentals. M r. deLaunay references an affidavit from 
M r. Floyd Degueyter, President of CLM , in which 
M r. Degueyter describes contracts with both individuals as a 
quid pro quo relationship. M r. deLaunay also states that the 
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report overstates the length of tim e that the rental equipm ent 
was used. 

Furtherm ore, M r. deLaunay states that the item s Cobnrn's 
W holesale Supply provided to M r. Seim em i free of charge w ere 
discontinued item s being rem oved from the "for sale" inventory 
and prom otional item s provided to Cobur~i's free of charge. 

M r. deLaunay also states that the Town is unable to confirm 
that M r. Scim em i received and retained any cash fiom tile 
transactions described in our report. Furtherm ore, 
M r. deLaunay stales that no Town resources w ere expended or 
lost by these transactions. 

Town of Broussard Paid Em ployees $2,011 
for W ork D one on Private Property 

Finding 

R ecom m endation: 

R esponse 

(Page 5) 

M r. M itchel Scim em i, the form er Superintendent of Streets for 
the Town of Broussard, directed Town em ployees to do w ork 
on private property. M r. Scim em i also caused him self and other 
Town employees to be paid $2,011 by the Town for their work 
on those projects. In addition, Mr. Scimemi and the other Town 
em ployees received pay from private sources. M r. Seim em i 
personally received $775 of the $2,01 t in public funds paid for 
nonpublic w ork. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent com ply w ith Louisiana law 
and not direct public em ployees to perform work on private 
property. W e also recom m end that the Town implem ent 
policies and procedures to ensure that Town em ployees do not 
perform work on private property while being paid by the 
Town. W e ftu'ther recom m end that the District Attorney for the 
Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review this inform ation 
and take appropriate legal action to include seeking restilution 

M r. deLamlay states that the auditors' m ethodology used to 
determ ine the date of the questioned work is unreliable. 
According to M r. deLaunay, the Town w ill continue to 
investigate to determ ine, if it can, when the certain w ork was ill 
fact done. 
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M ayor Langlinais Failed to Pay for $927 
of D irt From  Tow n Pit in a Tim ely M anner 

Finding 

Recom m endation: 

Response: 

(Page 9) 

M r. Charles Langlinais, M ayor of the Town of Broussard, 
received fill dirt and topsoil valued at $927 from the Town's 
dirt pit. How ever, he failed to pay the Town until after w e 
began our investigation. He paid the Town $140 for the fill dirt 
thirteen months after it was delivered and $437 for the topsoil 
four m onths after it was received. Therefore, M ayor Langlinais 
paid the Town $350 less than the fair market value of the dirt. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent for the Town im plem ent 
policies and procedures to ensure that the Town's dirt pit is used 
only for official Town business. W e further recom m end that 
the District Attorney for the Fifteenth Judicial District of 
Louisiana review this inform ation and take appropriate legal 
action to include seeking restitution. 

M r. deLaunay responded that the fill dirt thai M ayor Langlinais 
received was of a lesser quality than the "fill dirt" value used in 
our report. 

Form er Superintendent of Streets H ad $1,750 
of D irt R em oved From  the Tow n's D irt Pit, 
Sold It, and D id N ot R eim burse the Tow n 

Finding: 

R ecom m endation: 

R esponse: 

(Page 10) 

M r. M itchel Scim em i, the form er Superintendent of Streets for 
the Town of Broussard, directed the rem oval of dirt valued at 
$1,750 from the Town 's dirt pit and did not reimburse the 
Town . M r. Scim em i used the dirt to fulfill a contract that he 
had w ith Service Com m unications. 

W e recom m end that the Town im plem ent policies and 
procedures to ensure that the Town's dirt pit is used only for 
official Town business. W e further recom m end that the District 
Attorn ey for the Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review 
this inform ation and take appropriate legal action to include 
seeking restitution. 

M r. deLaunay stated that the appropriate parties w ill be required 
to reim burse the Town for any dirt that was rem oved, and 
appropriate disciplinary action w ill be taken if the report 
findings appear to be correct. 
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M ayor and Form er Superintendent of Streets 
H ave A ccess to Un-m etered W ater 

Finding 

Recom m endation: 

Response: 

(Page 11) 

M ayor Charles Langlinais and M r. M itchel Scim em i, the form er 
Superintendent of Streets, have access to un-m etered Town 
water. Furtherm ore, M r. Scimem i used $540 of Town materials 
to install water and sewer lines on his property and failed to pay 
in a tim ely m anner. 

W e recom m end that the Town im plem ent policies and 
procedures to ensure that Town assets are properly safeguarded. 
W e further recom m end that the District Attorney for the 
Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review this inform ation 
and take appropriate legal action to include seeking restitution. 

M r. deLaunay stated that the M ayor paid for his own waterline 
and the Town has never assum ed the responsibility for 
m aintaining file waterline on the M ayor's property and has no 
obligation to m aintain it. 

M ayor Subm itted a G rant A pplication 
C ontaining a False Statem ent 

Finding 

R ecom m endation: 

R esponse 

(Page 13) 

M ayor Charles Langlinais obtained grants totaling $40,000 to 
install a waterline on Ida Road by subm itting applications to the 
Governor's Office of Rural Development (ORD) and the 
Lafayette Economic Development Authority (LEDA). The 
O RD grant contained a m aterially false statem ent. In addition, 
when obtaining reim bursem ents through the O RD grant, M ayor 
Langlinais included costs that w ere not incurred on the Ida 

Road project. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent for the Town not subm it grant 
applications, which include false statem ents. W e also 
recom m end that grant funds only be expended for the purpose 
specified in the gr ant. In addition, w e recom m end that requests 
for reim bursem ents only include expenditures actually incurred 

on the approved grant project. 

Mr. deLaunay stated that the findings (report) deliberately 
m isquote the application and that no false statem ent was m ade 
by the M ayor. 



B ackground and M ethodology 

The Town of Broussard is located in Lafayette Parish and was incorporated under the provisions 
of the Lawrason Acl. The Town operates under the M ayor/Board of Alderm en form of 
governm ent. The Board of A lderm en is com prised of five m em bers elecled from four dislricts. 
The fifth alderm an is elected at large and serves as the M ayor Pro Tem pore. The Town of 
Broussard has a population of approxim ately 4,000. 

The O ffi ce of Legislative Auditor received inform ation alleging im proprieties concerning abuses 
of power and personal enrichm ent by the M ayor and lhe form er Superintendent of Streets. 

The results of our investigation are the findings and recom m endations herein 
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Findings and R ecom m endations 

M AYO R AN D FO RM ER SUPERINTEN DEN T O F 
STR EETS RECEIVED G IFTS FRO M  TO W N 
V EN D O R S 

M r. Charles Langlinais, M ayor of the Town of Broussard (Town), and M r. M itehel 
Scim em i, form er Superintendent of Streets for the Tow n of Broussard, received equipm ent 
use valued at approxim ately $24,550 and approxim ately $69,330 from CLM  Equipm ent, a 
vendor of the Tow n of Broussard. In addition, M r. Scim em i received gifts of plum bing 
supplies and appliances am ounting to $1,594 from a Town vendor, Coburn's W holesale 
Supply. Finally, M r. Scim em i also received an undeterm ined am ount ill cash and groceries 
from Billeaud's Superette, a grocer and Tow n vendor w ho supplied food for w eekly Tow n 
luncheons. 

C LM  Equipm ent 

CLM Equipm ent has been a Town vendor for approxim ately ten years. From January 1991 
through December 1995, CLM billed the Town approxim ately $14,500 per year. Sales increased 
to $50,036, $124,476, and $189,034 for calendar years 1996, 1997, and 1998, respectively. 
M ayor Langlinais stated that th e reason for tile increased use of heavy equipm ent is due to the 
Town's construction of LaN euville Road. 

M r. M elvin Berlrand, M r. Larry Cham pagne, M r. Charles Nolan, and M r. L. J. Bourque, Town  

employees who operated CLM equipment (grader, backhoe, excavator) for both the Mayor and 
M r. Scim em i, provided representatives of the Legislative Auditor w ith inform ation concerning 
the use of CLM  equipm ent by M ayor Langlinais and M r. Scim em i. According to that 
inform ation and applying the Town's rental cost for this equipm ent, M ayor Langlinais received 
the use of CLM equipm ent valued at approximately $24,550 and M r. Scimemi received the use 
of CLM equipment valued at approximately $69,330. M r. Floyd Degueyter, President of CLM , 
stated that he provided free equipm ent use for both M ayor Langlinais and M r. Scim em i. 

M AYOR CHARLES LANGLINAIS 

Based on the inform ation provided by the individual who worked on M ayor Langlinais' 
pond, on at leas| 36 days during 1996, the M ayor had CLM  equipm ent for his personal 
use. During this period, M ayor Langlinais was having a fish pond dug. M ayor 
Langlinais stated that the pond was actually done in four or five days and that our 
estim ate is grossly overstated. M ayor Langlinais provided us w ith a contract dated 
M ay 3, 1996, betw een CLM  and him self. The contract provided that CLM  w ould 
provide free equipm ent rentals to M ayor Langlinais in exchange for work the M ayor did 
on th e properly belonging to M r. Degueyter. Further, the contract provided that M ayor 
Langlinais w ould provide cypress logs from his property to M r. Degueyter in exchange 
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for equipm ent rentals. In addition, the M ayor stated that he offered M r. Degueyier a 
one-third interest in a one-acre lot as additional com pensation for the use of the CLM 
equipm ent. According to M ayor Langlinais, M r. Degueyter w as not interested ill the 
property when it w as offered to him in Septem ber 1995. M ayor Langlinais further stated 
that M r. Degueyter has recently expressed an interest in the original offer. The M ayor 
stated that he did not know the value of the one-third acre lot that he offered 
M r. Degueyter, but M r. M itchel Scim em i, who owned one-third of the lot, sold his 
interest for $ I 0,000. 

M r. Degueyter stated that the M ayor did do som e w ork for him and provided him w ith 
som e cypress logs. However, M r. I)egueyter said that the logs were of no use to him and 
that he considered the free equipm ent use as som ething he did for a good custom er and a 
friend. 

M ayor Langlinais provided us w ith a second contract between him and CLM  dated 
July 30, 1998. The contract provided that CLM  would provide rental equipm ent needed 
in the conslruction of the M ayor's new hom e, and the M ayor w ould pay the total renta l 

upon completion of the project. However, Mr. Degueyier told us that he did not have any 
records docum enting M ayor Langlinais' equipm ent use, adding that he knew that tile 
M ayor had used som e equipm ent in the construction of his new hom e. M ayor Langlinais 
provided us with copies of checks paid to CLM  dated October 27, 1999, and October 28, 
1999, for $731 and $97, respectively. M ayor Langlinais staled that the purpose of the 
$731 was to pay for the CLM equipment thai he used in the building of his new home, 
but he could not recall the purp ose of the $97 payment. M ayor Langlinais also in formed 
us that he kepl no records of what equipm ent was used or for how long. 

M R. M ITCHEL SCIM EM 1 

M r. Scim em i perform s general construction w ork for various businesses and individuals 
including him self. Based on inform ation provided to us, during flae period M arch 1997 
lhrough O ctober 1999, M r. Scim em i received the use of CLM  equipm ent valued at 
approximately $69,330. M r. Scimemi stated that he had access to CLM equipment free 
of charge whenever he needed it. M r. Scimem i provided us with a contract dated 
M ay 15, 1995, which provided that in exchange for his labor CLM  w ould provide him 
w ith free equipm ent renta l. M r. Scim em i stated that this contract w ith CLM  was for a 
specific purpose but has been orally renewed for different purp oses several tim es such 
that he has had a continuous contractual relationship w ith CLM . M r. Degueyter staled 
that he norm ally lets good custom ers use CLM  equipm ent free of charge on weekends. 
M r. Degueyter stated that he considered the free equipm ent CLM  provided to 

Mr. Seimemi as just loaning equipment to a friend. 

M r. Hayw ard Adam s, a general contractor and Town vendor, stated that M r. Seim em i 
approached  him in 1996 and suggested that he (Mr. Adams) rent equipment from CLM to 
be used on the M ayor's pond off Bayou Tortue Road. According to M r. Adam s, 
M r. Scim em i stated that the entire cost of the equipm ent would be paid for by the Town. 



Findings and Recomm endations 

M r. Adam s stated that he refused to accept M r. Scim em i's proposal and that since his 
refusal, he has lost business w ith the Towu. 

COBURN'S W HOLESALE SUPPLY 

Coburn's W holesale Supply is a Town vendor and has averaged $15,000 in sales to thc 
Town for the calendar years 1996 and 1997. In 1998, sales to the Town rose to m ore than 
$20,000 and increased to m ore than $30,000 for the first eleven m onths of 1999. 

On October 6, 1999, M r. Russell Atchetee, M anager for Cobum 's W holesale Supply, 
gave representatives of the Legislative Auditor a list of plum bing supplies and appliances 
valued at $1,594 that M r. Scimemi received free of charge from Coburn's. M r. M itchel 
Scimemi agreed that he received certain free plumbing supplies and appliauces (cooktop, 
toilets, faucets, and installation supplies) from Coburn's but was uncertain as to the 
am ount. M r. Atchetee also stated that it is his policy to help custom ers in any way he can 
and thal if a good custom er is building a personal residence, he will help that custom er by 
giving them certain item s free of charge. Furtherm ore, M r. Atchetee said that there are 
no strings attached to gifts, but he hoped that the gifts w ould generate future business. 

According to M r. Scim em i, he m ade the decision on whal supplies would be purchased 

for each Town job. It appears that Mr. Scimemi may have purchased items from 
Coburn's thai were either not im m ediately needed by the Towu or at prices greater than 
that available through other vendors. 

In April 1999, M r. Scim em i authorized the purchase of 50 m eter boxes at a cost of 
$2,885 from Coburn's. In M ay 1999, he authorized the purchase of 50 m ore m eter boxes 
and 50 couplers for a total cost of $3,164. Since April 21, 1999, the Town has installed a 
total of 55 m eters resulting in one year's inventory of m eter boxes on hand. 

lu July 1999, M r. Scim em i authorized the purchase of 72 two-inch waterline clam ps at a 
cost of $3,685 from Coburn's. According to M r. Larry Champagne, M r. M el Bertrand, 
aud M r. Chene Resweber, Tow n m aintenance em ployees, none of these clam ps have 
been used, and they doubt that the Town  w ill ever use the existing inventory of two-inch 
clam ps. 

On October 12, 1999, the Town purchased  a fire hydrant from Coburn's at a cost of $966. 
In M arch, April, and M ay of 1999, the Town  purchased equivalent fire hydrants from 
W inwater W orks for less than $800 each. 

In addition, representatives of the Legislative Auditor observed num erous other 
m aintenance supply item s, which appear to be excessive unused inventory. Town 
em ployees confirm ed this observation. 
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BILLEAUD'S SUPERFTTE 

M r. Scim em i organized a w eekly hm cheon that is held on m ost Thursdays for 
m aintenance employees and Town vendors. According to M s. Cindy Ross, Clerk 11 for 
the Town, Town  vendors have paid for the food used at Town luncheons since the fall of 

1997. The food is usually purchased from Billeaud's Superette (Billeaud's) in Broussard. 
Em ployees at Billeaud's stated that M r. Scim em i norm ally delivered the vendors' 
paym ents to Billeaud's. 

M s. Janel Rum sey, cashier for Billeaud's, stated that som etim es M r. Scim em i got cash 
back from checks m ade payable to Billeaud's for the luncheons from Town vendors. 
M s. Rum sey stated that she rem embered giving M r. Scim em i cash back ranging from $10 
to $60. The last cash refund that she could recall was in September 1999 when 
M r. Seimemi received  cash back of $20 to $50. M s. Carol Romero, another cashier for 
Billeaud's, recalled an instance when M r. Scim emi received $60 cash back. M r. Billeaud 
originally stated  that M r. Scim em i never received cash back from these vendor paym ents 
for Town  luncheons; however, later in the sam e conversation, M r. Billeaud said that he 
recalled two occasions when M r. Scimemi received cash refunds of $11 and $15. 

According to M r. Chester A llem an, Billeaud's em ployee, M r. Scim em i charged $25 
approxim ately twice w eekly for his personal groceries. M s. Trisha Trim ble, cashier for 
Billeaud's, also stated  that M r. Scim em i charged personal groceries, and that 
M r. Scim em i's personal charges w ere combined w ith charges for the Town's luncheons. 
M r. Billy Billeaud, owner of Billeaud's, stated that he never really looked at the receipts 
com plising the charges for the Town's luncheons, so it w as possible that som e of 
M r. Scim em i's personal charges w ere paid by the sam e vendor check that paid for the 
Town luncheons. M r. Billeaud further told us that all records of purchases and paym ents 
were discarded after paym ent w as received. M s. Trim ble, M s. Rom ero, and M s. Rum sey 
could not rem em ber M r. or M rs. Scim em i ever m aking personal paym ents for their 
personal charges. 

M r. Scim em i advised representatives of the Legislative Auditor's Offi ce that he has 
retained  an attorney and has been advised not to answer any of our questions. 

CONCLUSION 

These actions described  m ay be violations of the follow ing Louisiana laws 

R.S. 14:134, "M alfeasance in O ffi ce" 

R.S. 42:1111 (B), "Payment From Nonpublic Sources 

R.S. 42:1115, "Gifts" 

R.S. 42:1116, "Abuse of O ffi ce" 

R.S. 42:1461 (A), "Obligation Not to M isuse Public Funds 
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W e recom m end thal m anagem ent com ply with Louisiana law and not accepl anything of value 
fi'om Tow n vendors. If value is received from  Tow n vendors, appropriale records should be 
m aintained to support that such w as not a gift and that the vendor w as appropriately 
com pensated for th e value received. W e further recom m end that the District Attorney for the 
Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review this inform ation and take appropriate legal action. 

TO W N O F BRO U SSARD PAID EM PLO YEES 
$2,011 FO R W O RK DO NE O N PRIVA TE 
PR O PER TY 

M r. M itchel Scim em i, the form er Superintendent of Streets for the Tow n of Broussard, 
directed Tow n em ployees to do work on private property. M r. Scim em i also caused 
him self and other Town em ployees to be paid $2,011 by the Town for their work on these 
projects. In addition, M r. Scimemi and the other Town employees received pay from 
private sources. M r, Scim em i personally received $775 of the $2,011 in public funds paid 
for nonpublic work. 

In addition to being a Town em ployee, M r. Scim em i does private construction work. On the 
occasions listed below, M r. Scim em i directed Town em ployees to perform w ork on private 
property. Tw o of these occasions w ere on M r. Scim em i's private property. 

SERVICE COM MUNICATIONS 

M r. Scivr~em i directed Town em ployees to perform  w ork on a private contract that he 
entered into with Service Com m unications and caused him self and other Town 
employees to be paid $521 by the Town for the private work. 

M r. Keith tlendrick, owner of Service Com m unications, entered into a contract w ith 
M r. Scim em i to construct a building foundation and parking lot. M r. Scim em i signed the 
contract that described the specific requirements of the project. Originally, we concluded 
that the project was completed over two weekends (February 21, 1998, and April 4, 
1998). The response from M r. Gerald deLaunay, Town attorn ey, new information 
brought to our attention, and discussions with representatives of Theriot Construction, the 
building contractor, indicate that it is questionable that the weekend of February 21, 
1998, was the w eekend the dirt w ork w as done. From the Soil Com paction Testing 
docum ents and discussions with representatives of Theriot Construction, the dirt work 
m ay have been accom plished before the w eekend of Febru ary 21, 1998, as concluded in 
M r. deLaunay's response. Therefore, the $2,011 in the introductory paragraph does not 
include any paym ents for work on February 21. 

A s originally concluded, it does appear that w ork was done on the w eekend of April 4, 
1998. Based on the lim estone delivery ticket dates and a statem ent from  M r. M elvin 
Bertrand, the w eekend of April 4, 1998, is the m ost likely w eekend that the lim estone 
was spread. 
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Payroll records indicate that the Town paid $521 for overtime work on the weekend of 
April 4, 1998. A ccording to M r. M el Bertrand, Town em ployee, the overtim e work 
actually represented private w ork done at Service Com m unications. M r. Scim em i 
received $233 and Town employees, M r. Bertrand and M r. Andrew W illiams, received 
$152 and $136, respectively from the Town. 

M r. Scim em i, M r. Bertrand, and M r. W illiam s w ere also paid by Service 
Com m unications for the services they provided under the contract. M r. Hendrick 
provided docum entation showing that he paid M r. Scim emi $1,336 and gave him a 
marine radio and antenna valued at $571. According to M r. Bertrand, M r. Scim em i paid 
the workers (Mr. Bertrand, Mr. W illiams, and Mr. Larry Champagne, also a Town 
employee) approximately $500. 

In addition, on M onday, April 6, 1998, M r. Scim em i signed for the delivery of lim estone 

for the Service Communication job at 6:17 a.m., 11:22 a.m., and 11:24 a.m. 
M r. Scim em i's tim e card for this day indicates he worked for the Town from 6:14 a.m . to 
5:02 p.m . w ith lunch from 11:32 a.m . to 12:22 p.m . 

TAYLOR STEEl, 

Based on the inform ation provided, M r. M itchel Scim em i received $116 from the Town 
for work on a private contract w ith Taylor Steel. M r. Leonard Taylor, owner of Taylor 

Steel, negotiated with Mr. Scimemi to connect his (Taylor's) property to the Town water 
supply and sew er service. 

Originally, w e concluded that the work done (m the property owned by M r. Taylor was 
perform ed on July 24, 1998. Our original conclusion w as based on statem ents from 
Town em ployees that they had been paid by the Town for the w ork perform ed and from 
the invoices that were available at the tim e. Because of inform ation provided in the 
response from M r. Gerald deLaunay, Town attorney, an invoice from Louisiana Concrete 
Boring and Saw ing and an additional statem ent from M r. Larry Cham pagne, this date 
appears questionable. W e concur  w ith the response that the m ore likely date the w ork 
was done was July 31, 1998. W e also concluded originally that the Town em ployees, 
M r. Scim em i, M r. M elvin Bertrand, M r. Champagne, M r. Adam Jones, and M r. Andrew 
W illiam s were paid from Town funds for this private w ork. Based on the new 
inform ation, it appears that only M r. Scim em i w as paid by the Town for the private w ork 
done on M r. Taylor's property. 

According to M r. Bertrand and M r. Cham pagne, M r. Scim em i was present the day the 
w ork w as done. M r. Cham pagne rem em bered specifically that M r. Scim em i operated the 

trencher used on the job and that he was present the whole day except for a short time 
after lunch. 

M r. Scim em i's tim ecard indicates that he w as on Tow n tim e from 6:52 a.m . until 11:35 
a.m . on July 31, 1998. W e note that the 11:35 a.m . entry on M r. Scim em i's tim ecard is 
handwritten. This 4.5 hours of overtime cost the Town $116. 



Findings and Recom m endations Pagc 7 

INSTALLATION OF M R. SCIM EM I'S W ATER AND SEW ER LINES 

M r. Scim em i directed Town em ployees to w ork on his personal property and caused 
himself and these employees to be paid $801 by the Town for the work done on his 
private property. M r. Bertrand and M r. Jones inform ed us that they along w ith 
M r. Andrew W illiam s, M r. Gerald W illiam s, and M r. Scim em i installed water and sewer 
lines on M r. Scim em i's private property. A ll of the w orkers w ere Town em ployees. 
M r. Bertrand and M r. Jones stated that this took "all day." Based on statem ents m ade by 
M r. Jones and M r. Bertrand, this w ork was done either on the w eekend of M ay 22 or 
June 5, 1998. In addition, another Town em ployee, M r. Larry Cham pagne, stated that he 
attended a barbecue at M r. Scim em i's house on the day the lines w ere installed. He also 
stated that this was either M ay 22 or June 5, 1998. A review of tim ecards and other 
records indicates that on M ay 22, 1998, M r. Bertrand, M r. Jones, M r. Andrew W illiam s, 
M r. Gerald W illiam s, and M r. Scim em i each received ten hours of overtim e at a cost to 
the Town of $801. M r. Scim em i received $245, M r. Bertrand $160, M r. Jones $134, 
M r. A . W illiam s $143, and M r. G. W illiam s $119. 

Town employees, M r. M elvin Bertrand and M r. Adam Jones, inform ed representatives of 

this office that they did not punch their timecards for the project listed above. However, 
our review found that tim ecards for the Town's em ployees were punched and the Town 
paid the em ployees for this tim e. 

RELOCATION OF M R. SCIM EM I'S W ATER AND SEVCER LINES 

On February 5, 1999, M r. Scim em i caused Town em ployees, M r. Bertrand, M r. Jones, 
M r. Jam es Sam , and M r. Andrew W illiam s, and him self to receive seven hours of 
overtim e for relocating the water and sew er lines that had been installed on 
M r. Scim em i's property on M ay 22, 1998. For this w ork, the Town paid M r. Scim em i 
$181, M r. Bertrand $118, M r. Jones $98, M r. Sam $71, and M r. Andrew W illiams $105, 
for a total of $573. 

M r. Bertrand stated that M r. Scim em i punched everyone's tim ecard. M r. Bertrand also 
stated that he disagreed w ith being paid by the Town for this w ork, but M r. Scim em i told 
him nol to question his (Scimemi's) authority. Mr. Bertrand stated that later he told 
M s. Cindy Ross, Clerk I1 for the Town, not to include the seven hours in the computation 
of his pay. M s. Ross confirm ed that M r. Bertrand told her not to include the seven hours 
on his check. She then stated that M r. Scim em i instructed M r. Bertrand to leave the 
hours as they w ere. 

M r. Scim em i inform ed us that the Tow n did not pay Town em ployees for w ork done on private 
property and that he w as very careful to ensure that the Town never paid anyone for private 

work. M r. Scimemi added that he was paid for contracting the jobs and not for actually 
perform ing any services him self. 
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O n O ctober lg, 1999, the em ployees who w orked on M r. Scim em i's property on February 5, 
1999, (relocation of water and sewer lines) were issued letters of reprimand from the Mayor and 
instructed to reim burse the Town. M r. Bertrand and M r. Andrew W illiam s have m ade full 
reim bursem ent and M r. Sam has m ade partial reim bursem ent. 

W e received a copy of a letter dated O ctober 18, 1999, from M ayor Langlinais to M r. Scim em i 
suspending M r. Scim em i w ithout pay because Town em ployees perform ed w ork on his private 
property and w ere paid w ith Town funds. This letter is related to the February 5, 1999, work 
only. The M ayor's letter made no request for reimbursement of the $]81 thai M r. Scimemi 
received. However, w e received copies of checks dated December 3 and Decem ber 6, 1999, 
payable to the Town drawn on M r. Scim em i's personal account for $173 and $8, respectively. 
Oil N ovember 3, 1999, M r. Scim em i returned to w ork as an operator at a reduced rate of pay. 

M ayor Langlinais stated that every employee who received Town pay for working oll private 
property is at fault for accepting the pay w ithout reporting the incident to m anagem ent. 

M r. Scim em i advised representatives of the Legislative Auditor's Offi ce that he has retained an 
attorney and has been advised not to answer any of our questions. 

These actions described m ay be violations of the follow ing Louisiana law s 

~ R.S. 54:72,"Forgery" 

~ R.S. 14:134, "M alfeasance in O ffice" 

~ R.S. 14:138, "Payroll Fraud" 

~ R.S. 42:1461(A), "Obligation Not to M isuse Public Funds 

~ Article 7, Section 54 of the Louisiana Constitution, "Donation of A ssets" 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent com ply w ith Louisiana law and not direct public employees to 
perform w ork on private property. W e also recom m end that the Town im plem ent policies and 
procedures to ensure that Town em ployees do not perform w ork on private property while being 
paid by the Town. W e further recom m end that the District Attorney for the Fifteenth Judicial 
District of Louisiana review this inform ation and take appropriate legal action to include seeking 
restitution. 
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M A YO R LA N G LINA 1S FA ILED TO  PA Y 
FO R $927 O F DIRT FRO M  TO W N PIT 
IN A TIM ELY M AN N ER 

M r. C harles Langlinais, M ayor of the Tow n of Broussard, received fill dirt and topsoil 
valued at $927 from the Tow n's dirt pit. H ow ever, he failed to pay the Tow n until after w e 
began our investigation. H e paid the Town $140 for the fill dirt thirteen m onths after it 
was delivered and $437 for the topsoil four m onths after it was received. Therefore, M ayor 
Langlinais paid the Tow n $350 less than the fair m arket value of the dirt. 

FILL D 1RT 

M r. Jonathan LeBlanc, owner of LeBlanc Trucking and a Town em ployee, stated that his truck 
was used to haul fill dirt fi'om the Town's dirt pit to the construction site of M ayor Langlinais' 
new hom e. M r. Herm an Singleton, the driver of M r. LeBlanc's truck, stated that on 
Septem ber 4, 1998, he hauled 14 loads of fill dirt using M r. LeBlanc's 14-yard truck. 

According to M ayor Langlinais, he thought that he paid for the dirt when he paid M r. LeBlanc 
for the use of his truck. M ayor Langlinais stated that when he realized that representatives of tile 
Legislative Auditor w ere investigating the m atter, he determ ined that he had not paid the Town 
for the dirt. M ayor Langlinais then directed M s. Cindy Ross, a clerk for the Town, to prepare all 
invoice with the follow ing notation: 

"M iscommunication between Jonathan (LeBlanc) and Charlie (Langlinais)." /s/Cindy 

According to Town records, on October 29, 1999, M ayor Langlinais paid the Town $140 plus 
applicable sales taxes for 140 yards of fill dirt. How ever, we determ ined w ith independent 
quotes that the fair m arket value of fill dirt in Broussard is $2.50 per yard. Therefore, the value 
of the 196 yards of fill dirt the M ayor received was $490. Thus, the M ayor underpaid the Town 
by $350 plus sales taxes. Furtherm ore, although M ayor Langlinais received the dirt ill 
Septem ber 1998, no paym ent w as m ade until O ctober 29, 1999, approxim ately thirteen m onths 
after receipt of the fill dirt. 

M ayor Langlinais stated that he actually received a clay m aterial that is of a lower quality than 
the fill dirt that our estim ates w ere based on. According to the M ayor, the one dollar per yard 
flaat he paid w as a fair price for the quality of file fill m aterial that he received. 

TOPSOIL 

M r. M elvin Bertrand, Town em ployee, delivered  70 yards of topsoil from the Town's dirt pit to 
M ayor Langlinais' new hom e in June 1999. According to M ayor Langlinais, when he learned 
that representatives of the Legislative Auditor w ere asking about the topsoil, he again realized he 
had not reim bursed the Town. M ayor Langlinais then directed M s. Cindy Ross, clerk for the 
Town, to prepare the invoice w ith the following notation: 
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'Failed to give Charlie (Langlinais) an invoice for dirt." /s/Cindy 

On October 19, 1999, M ayor Langlinais paid the fair market value of $437 plus applicable sales 
taxes for 70 yards of topsoil. 

M ayor l_,anglinais stated that he w as out of town the day the topsoil w as delivered. Furthermore, 
he said that since he did not receive an invoice, he forgot about it. M s. Ross stated that she did 
not know that the M ayor received dirt from file Town dirt pit, so she did not know that she was 
supposed to provide the M ayor w ith an invoice. 

Mayor Langlinais may have violated  Louisiana law, R.S. 42:1461(A), "Obligation Not to M isuse 
Public Funds." 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent for the Town im plem ent policies and procedures to ensurc that 
the Town's dirt pit is used only for official Town business. W e further recom m end that the 
District Attorney for the Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review this inform ation and take 
appropriate legal action to include seeking restitution. 

FO R M ER SU PERIN TEN D EN T O F STREETS 

HAD $1,750 OF DIRT REM OVED FROM  
TH E TO W N 'S DIRT PIT, SO LD IT, AN D 
D ID N O T R EIM BUR SE TH E TO W N 

M r. M itehel Seim em i, the form er Superintendent of Streets for the Tow n of Broussard, 
directed the rem oval of dirt valued at $1,750 from the Town's dirt pit and did not 
reim burse the Tow n. M r. Scim em i used the dirt to fulfill a contract that he had w ith 
Service Com m unications. 

M r. M itchel Scim em i negotiated w ith Service Com m unications to prepare a building foundation 
and parking lot. M r. Scim em i hired M r. Jonathan LeBlanc, owner of LeBlanc Trucking, and 
Mr. Melvin Bertrand, Town employee, to haul dirt to the job site. According to Mr. LeBlanc and 
M r. Bertrand, M r. Scim em i instru cted them to haul dirt from the Town's dirt pit to Service 

Communications. Mr. LeBlanc stated that his truck was used to haul 350 yards of dirt to the job 
site. M r. Bertrand stated that he hauled the rem aining 350 yards from the Town's dirt pit. 

According to M r. LeBlanc, he (LeBlanc) prepared an invoice for the hauling of 350 yards of dirt 
that his tru ck hauled; how ever, M r. Scim em i instru cted  him to prepare an invoice for hauling the 
entire 700 yards plus sales tax. 

Service Com m unications records indicate thai M r. LeBlanc was paid $2,100 plus sales tax of 
$157 for a total of $2,257. According to M r. LeBlanc, he cashed the check, kept $1,050 plus tile 
sales tax of $157, and gave the rem aining $1,050 to M r. Scim em i. A review of Town records 
indicates that the Town was not reim bursed for the dirt nor did the Tow n receive any of the sales 
tax collected. M r. Bertrand inform ed us that he did not receive any paym ent for hauling the dirt 
to Service Com m unications. 
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M r. Scim em J advised representatives of the Legislative Auditor's Office that he has retained an 
attorney and has been advised not to answ er any of our questions. 

These actions m ay be violations of the follow ing Louisiana law s 

~ R.S. 14:67,"Theft" 

~ R.S. 14:134, "M alfeasance in O ffice 

~ lLS. 42:1461(A), "Obligation Not to M isuse Public Funds 

W e recom m end th at the Town im plem ent policies and procedures to ensure that the Town's dirt 
pit is used only for official Town business. W e further recom m end that the District Attorney for 
the Fifteenth Judicial District of Louisiana review th is inform ation and take appropriate legal 
action to include seeking restitution. 

M AYO R AN D FO RM ER SUPERINTEN DEN T O F 
STREETS H AVE A CCESS TO UN-M ETERED 
W A TE R 

M ayor C harles Langlinais and M r. M itehel Scim em i, the form er Superintendent of Streets, 
have access to un-m etered Tow n w ater. Furtherm ore, M r. Scim em i used $540 of Tow n 
m aterials to install w ater and sew er lines on his property and failed to pay in a tim ely 
m anner. 

M AYOR LANGLINAIS' W ATERLINE 

In January 1999, M ayor Langlinais began construction on a new hom e located directly behind 
his old hom e. Though M ayor Langlinais paid for the insta llation of the w aterline to his new 
hom e, the location of the m eter next to his hom e m akes the Town responsible for m aintaining 
over 100 feet of waterline that w ould norm ally be the hom eowner's responsibility. In addition

, 

there is a two-inch tlush-out valve located on the Town side of the w ater m eter, next to M ayor 
Langlinais' new hom e, giving the M ayor access to un-m etered Town w ater. 

Mr. Scimemi stated that he located Mayor Langlinais' meter next to his (Mayor Langlinais') 
hom e to reduce the m eter cost to the M ayor. M r. Scim em i explained that if the m eter were 
located near the public access, the M ayor w ould have had to install a larger m eter at a higher cost 

to him (the Mayor) in order to receive adequate water pressure. Mr. Scimemi also stated that he 
w as not aware that the M ayor had an un-m etered flush-out valve. 

M ayor Langlinais stated that he w as not aware that he had an un-m etered flush-out valve next to 
his house, tie also stated that the reason a flush out valve is next to his house is because the 
Town intends in the future to extend his waterline to connect to a public access several hundred 
feet behind his property. 
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M R. SCIM EM I'S W ATERLINE 

Mr. Scimemi installed water and sewer lines on his property (1) using Town materials, (2) in a 
manner increasing the Town's liability, and (3) providing him with access to an un-metered 
w ater supply. 

M r. Scim em i installed his water and sewer lines in the spring of 1998. He used at least $540 
worth of Town materials to do the job. Though he received the materials in March 1998, he did 
not pay the Town until M arch 1999. M r. Scim em i stated that the reason for the delay was that 
M s. Cindy Ross, Clerk 11 for the Town, failed to invoice him in a tim ely m anner. M s. Ross 
staled thal she did nol invoice M r. Scim em i for the m aterials because she was not aware that be 
had used Town m alerials. M s. Ross stated that when M r. Scim em i inforn led her thal he gol 
m aterials from the Town, she im m ediately invoiced him . 

M r. Scim em i localed his w ater m eter near his hom e, which is located several hundred feel onlo 
private property. The location of M r. Scim em i's m eter creates an additional liability for the 
Town to m aintain a w aterline that would norm ally be the responsibility of the hom eowner. 
M r. Scim em i's waterline also has an un-m etered  two-inch flush-out valve and an un-m elered 

standard faucet c(mnection. 

M r. Scim em i stated that the flush-out valve was needed to keep the water in the line fresh. Ite 
also staled  that he installed the standard faucet connection so that the line could be flushed m ore 
easily w ithout using the two-inch valve. 

M r. Scim em i advised representatives of the Legislative Audilor's Offi ce that he has retained an 
altorney and has been advised not to answer any of our questions. 

The actions described above m ay be violations of the follow ing Louisiana law s 

R.S. 42:1461, "Obligation N ot 1o M isuse Public Funds 

Article 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution, "Donation of Public Assets" 

W e recom m end that the Town im plem ent policies and procedures to ensure that Town assets are 
properly safeguarded. W e further recom m end that the District Attorney for the Fifteenth Judicial 
Districl of Louisiana review this inform ation and take appropriate legal action to include seeking 
restitution. 
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M A Y O R SUBM ITTED A G R A N T 
A PPL IC A TIO N C O N TA IN IN G  A 
FA LSE STA TEM EN T 

M ayor C harles Langlinais obtained grants totaling $40,000 to install a w aterline on Ida 
Road by submitting applications to the Governor's Offi ce of Rural Development (ORD) 
and the Lafayette Economic Development Authority (LEDA). The ORD grant contained a 
false statem ent. In addition, w hen obtaining reim bursem ents through the O RD grant, 

M ayor Langlinais included costs that were not incurred on the Ida Road project. 

O FFICE OF R URAL D EVELOPM ENT G RANT 

On M ay 26, 1998, the Broussard Town Council passed a resolution to apply for a $25,000 grant 
from the Govern or's Office of Rural Development (ORD). The purpose of the grant was to 
install approximately 3,500 feet of eight-inch waterline along the Ida Road excension. Tile 
grantor stated that grant funds could not be used to reim burse the Town for labor costs if Town 
em ployees perfornaed the w ork. Town em ployees perform ed the w ork. 

The com pleted application signed by M ayor Charles Langlinais states that the proposed 
waterline w ill serve "approxim ately ten businesses presently, plus future developm ent." The 

completion report signed by Mayor Langlinais states that the project was completed on 
August 31, 1999, at a total cost of $20,279 for materials and will provide Town water to 
approxim ately ten businesses along Ida Road. ttow ever, there is only one business located on 
the Ida Road extension. M ayor Langlinais stated that the Town Clerk m ust have typed in 
"presently" when "future" w as the appropriate word. M s. Tina Denais, Town Clerk, stated that 
she typed exactly what the M ayor dictated and that she did not type in "presently" for "future." 

The term s of the grant specify a m aximum of $25,000 will be paid as reim bursem ent for actual 

expenditures on the approved project and provides that "... any use of grant funds to pay for 
other projects not described in the grant application will be grounds for immediate 
disqualification and revocation of the funds." The Town requested  and received $20,279 of 
reimbursements. Of that amount, the Town received $2,376 for materials not used on the Ida 
Road waterline. Observations of the completed Ida Road project by ORD personnel and 
representatives of the Legislative Auditor revealed that there w ere only five fire hydrants 
installed whereas the Town claim ed reim bursem ent for eight. The Town subsequently refunded 
$2,376 to ORD. 

LEDA G RANT 

In a letter dated April 9, 1999, to the Lafayette Economic Development Authority (LEDA), 
M ayor Langlinais requested an econom ic grant for $15,000. On April 28, 1999, LEDA notified 
Mayor Langlinais that his request was rejected  and suggested that he resubmit his request using 
m ore specific grant criteria. In a letter dated April 28, 1999, M ayor Langlinais requested a 
$15,000 grant to be used for the extension of the Ida Road waterline, 
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In September 1999, the Town received $15,000 from LEDA for the Ida Road waterline. The 
check was not deposited into the Tow n's general fund. It was deposited into the Broussard 

Economic Development Corporalion's (BEDC's) account, a nonpJofil corporation. Mr. J. L. 
Sonnier, Town auditor, and M r. Eugene Chiarulli, Town accountant, stated that BEDC is a 
com ponent unit of the Town. M embers of the Broussard Town Council inform ed us that they 
thought the $15,000 was a reimbursement for costs to the Town for installing the waterline, and 
only Councilm an M ichael Billeaud could recall M ayor Langlinais stating that the m oney w ould 
go to BEDC. BEDC had not spent any funds on the Ida Road waterline. 

In a letter dated O ctober 11, 1999, M r. Greg Gothreaux, President and Chief Executive O fficer 
of LEDA, requested that the M ayor provide docum entation to support the $15,000 grant. In a 
letter dated October 13, 1999, M r. Kenneth V eron, Chairm an of the Board of LEDA , stated, "It 
is important to us (LEDA) that the funds we (LEDA) granted for the purpose of installing a 
waterline on lda Road w ere used for that purp ose." 

On November 3, 1999, M ayor Langlinais requested that BEDC reimburse the Town's general 
fund $7,193 for the cost of labor and engineering incurred on the Ida Road waterline. 
Furtherm ore, M ayor Langlinais requested that BEDC reimburse LEDA the unused portion of the 
grant, $7,807. 

W e recom m end that m anagem ent for the Town not subm it grant applications, which include 
false statem ents. W e also recom m end that gr ant funds only be expended for the purp ose 
specified in the grant. In addition, we recom m end that requests for reim bursem ents only include 

expenditures actually incurred on the approved grant project. 
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M ayor and Superintendent of Streets 
r eceived G ifts From  Tow n V endors 

M ayor C harles Langlinais 

In his written response, M r. Gerald deLaunay, attorney for the Town of Broussard, refers 
to an affidavit provided by M r. Floyd l)egueyter of CLM  Equipm ent, Inc. M r. deLaunay 
states that M r. Degueyter m ade it clear to the investigative auditors that the value of the 

equipment provided was equal to the value of the cypress logs (approximately 4,000 
board feet at $1.50 per fool) given him by the 
Mayor. W e have enclosed three affi davits [see 
Exhibits 11, 12 and 13 at Attachment I11] 
prepared by the two Senior Investigative 
Auditors and the Investigative Audit M anager, 
all three of whom interview ed M r. Degueyter. 
A s you can see our representatives have 
provided signed affidavits attesting that the 
stalem ents in our report altributed to 
M r. D egueyter are accurate. 

M ayor Langlinais provided us w ith a copy of 

an  agreement dated September 1 l, 1995, [see 
Exhibit 11 wherein he (referred to as vendor) 
entered into an agreem ent w ith M r. M itchel 

See Exhibit 2 

See Exhibit 1. 

Scimemi and Mr. Hayward Adams (contractors). 
The second paragraph of the agreem ent states 
that the contractors w ill provide m anpower, 

equipment (emphasis added ), skill and talent to 
construct four fish ponds of approxim ately 70 by 
200 feet each . . . As stated in our reporl, the 
M ayor inform ed us that in return  for the use of 
equipm ent he perform ed  personal services, 

provided cyp ress logs Isee Exhibit 21, and 
offered M r. Degueyter a one-third interest in 
property. This statem ent is inconsistent w ith the 
contract, which clearly show s that the contractor 
was responsible for providing the equipm ent. 
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The question arises as to why would one perform services, give up $6,000 in cypress 
logs, and offer a one-third interest in property for som ething that was to be provided by 
the contractor. 

In his written response, M r. Gerald deLaunay, attorney for the Town of Broussard, states 
that the value of the equipm ent used during the building of the M ayor's fish pond is 
grossly overstated. O ur calculation of the value of the equipm ent used was based on 
inform ation provided by M r. Charles N olan who helped build the pond. M r. Nolan 
provided M r. Donald Landry, also an attorney for the Town of Broussard, w ith a sworu 
statem ent w hich m ore than supports our calculation. How ever, w e note that the Town 
attorney chose not to refer to M r. N olan's sworn statem ent. 

The M ayor informed us that he offered M r. Scim em i and M r. Degueyter each a one-third 

See Exhibit 3. 

interest in som e property in return  for 
M r. Scim em i's services in building the 
fish ponds and the use of M r. Degueyter's 
equipm ent. The M ayor stated that 
M r. Degueyter did not want the property. 
The M ayor further stated that 
M r. Scim em i was given the interest in the 
property. The M ayor then provided us 
w ith a copy of a cash sale agreem ent filed 
w ith the Clerk of Court for Lafayette 

Parish on March 12, 1997, [see Exhibit 3] 
show ing a cash sale of the w est half of a parcel 
of land for $10.00 by the M ayor to 
M r. Scim em i. O ur review of the clerk of court 
records show s that on N ovem ber 17, 1998, the 
M ayor and M r. Scim em i filed an Act of 

Correction Isee Exhibit 4]. This Act of 
Correction states that the docum ent filed on 
M arch 12, 1997, contained errors. The Act 
provides a m ore specific description of the See Exhibit 4. 

land and also states that it was not sold for $10.00 but for $5,000.00. W e note that on the 
same day M r. Scimemi sold the property for $10,000.00 lsee Exhibit 51. 
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See Exhibit 5 

M ayor's statem ent, valued at approxi- 
m ately $10,000 and personal services of 
the M ayor which w e cannot value, for 
the use of equipm ent. Based on the 
M ayor's statem ent that the pond w as 

Based on the inform ation provided by the 
M ayor and M r. DeLaunay, the M ayor provided 

(1) cypress logs valued at approximately 
$6,000, and (2) a parcel of land, based oll the 

See Exhibit 5. 

built in 4 to 5 days, this w ould m ean he was providing and/or offering value ranging from 
$3,200 to $4,000 a day for equipm ent not including the value of the personal services

. 

In sum m ary, M ayor Langlinais and M r. Scim em i, two of the Town's top offi cials
, 

received use of equipment from one of the Town's major vendors. Neither the vendor 
(M r. Degueyter), the M ayor nor M r. Scimemi could produce records to indicate what 
equipm ent was used, how long it was used, and the value of its use. If Town officials are 
going to do business with Town vendors, appropriate records should be m aintained

. 

M R. M 1TCIIEL SCIM EM I 

Coburn's W holesale Supply 

In the response, M r. deLaunay staled that certain item s received by M r. Scim em i free of 
charge w ere discontinued item s rem oved from Coburn's inventory. M r. Russell 
Atchetee, M anager of Coburn's W holesale Supply, informed us that the item s given to 
M r. Scim em i w ere prom otional item s. W e know of no bearing that this would have 
regarding the law (R.S. 42:1115) prohibiting Town  employees from receiving gifts from 
Town vendors. 
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According to a quotation provided by Coburn's, M r. Scim em i received $2,654 in 
appliances and plumbing supplies from Cobtwn's. O f this am ount, $1,594 or 60% was 
provided free of charge. Furtherm ore, the valuations were provided by Cobum 's and not 
the auditor. 

In his response, M r. deLaunay states that our representatives attem pted to intim idate the 
Cobun~'s representative even though he provided full and com plete answers. In our 
initial m eeting w ith M r. Zachary Brasseaux, Coburn's representative, w e w ere not 
provided w ith either full, com plete or accurate answers. W e asked M r. Brasseaux about 
faucets that M r. Scim em i received from Cobum 's. M r. Brasseaux told us that these 
faucets had been return ed by M r. Scim em i to Coburn's. This was untrue. M r. Scim em i 
had received these faucets free of charge from Coburn's. 111 addition, M r. Brasseaux 
failed to inform our representatives about other free m erchandise given to M r. Scim em i. 
In a later interview with M r. Brasseaux and his supervisor, M r. Russell Atchetee, w e 
were provided w ith a list of item s, which Coburn's gave to M r. Scim em i free of charge. 
That listing totaled $1,594 in free merchandise. 

Billeaud's Superette 

In his response, M r. deLaunay slates that M r. Billeaud provided truthful answ ers. In our 
discussions w ith M r. Billeaud and store em ployees, w e determ ined that M r. Billeaud did 
not provide full and truthful answers. For exam ple, in our initial interview on 
O ctober 25, 1999, M r. Billeaud stated that M r. Scim em i did not have a personal charge 
account at the store and usually paid cash for his personal groceries. On the sam e day, in 
the presence of M r. Billeaud, M s. Trisha Trimble, cashier for Billeaud's, stated that 
M r. Scim em i does have a charge account and that the records of his personal charges are 
m aintained w ith the Town's Thursday luncheon file. In our efforts to resolve these and 
other incun sistencies, w e attem pted to speak further w ith M r. Billeaud and were inform ed 
that upon the advice of his attorney he would no longer speak w ith us. 

Tow n of Broussard Paid Em ployees $2,011 
for W ork D one on Private Property 

Service Com m unications 

In the response, M r. deLaunay states that according to our investigation the lim estone 
was delivered on April 6, 1998; therefore, lim estone work could not have been done on 
April 4. A ccording to the lim estone delivery tickets that w e obtained from Service 
Com m unications, lim estone w as delivered on Friday, April 3, 1998, and on M onday, 
April 6, 1998. A ccording to M r. M elvin Bertrand, lim estone w as delivered on April 6, 
1998, because the am ount that w as delivered on April 3 was not enough to com plete the 

job. In our report, the reference to the limestone delivered on April 6 was to show that 
M r. Scim em i signed for it dur ing norm al Town business hours, not that work was 
actually done on that day. 
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Installation of M r. Scim em i's W ater and Sew er Lines 

In his response, M r. deLaunay stated that Town em ployees m ade it clear that the work 
could not have been done on M ay 22. M r. Bertrand and M r. Cham pagne inform ed our 
representatives that the w ork was done either on M ay 22 or June 5. 

M ayor Langlinais Failed to Pay for $927 of Dirt 
From  Tow n Pit in a Tim ely M anner 

As stated in our finding, the M ayor did not pay the Town of Broussard for the fill dirt or 
the topsoil until he discovered that the auditors w ere investigating the m atter. It should 
also be noted that according to Louisiana law , the M ayor m ay have also participated in a 

prohibited transaction. R.S. 42:1113(A) provides, in part, that no public servant shall bid 
on or enter into any contract, subcontract, or other transaction that is under the 

supervision or jurisdiction of the agency of such public servant. 

W hen asked about other sales from the Town's dirt pit, the M ayor told our 
representatives that dirt had been sold in the past to M r. Jonathan LeBlanc and 
M r. Hayward Adam s, both contractors. He provided no other instances of sales from the 
Town's dirt pit. W e also spoke with M s. Cindy Ross, clerk for the Town, w ho said that 
since April 1999 there have been no other invoices for sales of dirt by the Town. 
Therefore, it appears that the sale of dirt from the Town pit is a lim ited occurrence. 

Topsoil 

In his response, M r. deLaunay stated that because of a clerical error, the M ayor was not 
tim ely invoiced for the topsoil he received. How ever, as slated in our finding, the billing 
clerk did not know that the M ayor received dirt from the Town's dirt pit. 

Superintendent of Streets H ad $1,750 of Dirt 
R em oved From  the Tow n's D irt Pit, Sold it, 
and D id N ot R eim burse the Tow n 

In his response, M r. deLaunay stated that the statem ents given by M r. LeBlanc and 
M r. Bertrand are inconsistent w ith the sw orn statem ents given to the Town attorneys. 
M r. deLaunay did not state what those inconsistencies m ight be and have not provided 
our representatives with these inconsistencies. 

It should also be noted that according to Louisiana law , M r. Scim em i m ay have 

participated in a prohibited transaction. R.S. 42:1113(A) provides, in part, that no public 
servant shall bid on or enter into any contract, subcontract, or other transaction that is 

under the supervision or jurisdiction of the agency of such public servant. 
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Tow n of Broussard D iverted Public 
A ssets to Benefit Private Interests 

M ayor Langlinais' W aterline 

DI~TI~$UTION GVST~/d8 Where dead end 
mains occur... 

Wher~ad.er~l ~  ~t~ th~v ~ be p,o,vid~c~ ~lh a Ire h,Fdf~ll i~ I~ ~ pr~ss~e .~le 
s,Jllcenl, o~ witl~ t,~ ~ ovt~ ~  hv~enl o~l/o*.olf lo~ ~ Q pu~ s Fbs~ ~evi~ 

~2 V~.IVE6 

SufI~nl vBkOs $~ be pfo.zld~J on wa~ ~  $o ~l~onvonienr, e Ind .nilaff I~zalds wIL 
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See Exhibit 7 

The response slates that according 

to the "Ten Stales Standards" [see 
Exhibit 7], it is correct to install 
flush-out valves on dead end runs. 
W e have reviewed the "Ten States 
Standards" supplied to us by 
M r. Landry, Town Attorney. It 
appears that the "Ten States 
Standards" applies to "water 
m ains" and not to an individual 
hom eowner's waterline. 

The response further states that the 
M ayor does not own nor know of 
any two-inch hoses that would 

attach to his un-m etered flush-out 
valve Isee Exhibil 10]. W e note 

that the valve is m ade of PVC m aterial and com m on reducers are available for sale from 
num erous suppliers. 

M r. Scim em i's W aterline 

The response stales that the Town cm~ lake 
no further action w ith respect to this 
particular transaction because M r. Scim em i 
has paid for the m aterials he received from 
the Tow n. How ever, w e note that the 
response m akes no m ention of 
M r. Scim em i's access to un-m etered water 
through both the tw o-inch flush-out valve 
and the standard hose connection. As can 
be seen in the photograph on the right lalso, 
see Exhibit 8], the standard faucet 
connection has a hose connected to it. The 
hose goes to a house where M r. Scim em i 
said his daughter lives. 
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M ayor Langlinais Subm itted a G rant 
A pplication C ontaining a False Statem ent 

O ffi ce of R ural Developm ent G rant 

In the response, M r. deLaunay states that the Legislative Auditor's report deliberately 
m isquoted the application. O ur report states that the com pleted application states that the 
proposed w aterline w ill serve "approxim ately ten businesses presently, plus future 

that the M ayor subm itted an application See Exhibit 9. 
containing a false statem ent. 

In addition, the response states that six fire hydrants w ere installed on the Ida Road 
extension. W e agree thai there are now six fire hydrants installed. On Septem ber 27, 
1999, M r. M athew Rovira, O ff~ce of Rural D evelopm ent Inspector, and M s. Tina Denais, 
Town Clerk, counted five fire hydrants. On O ctober 5, 1999, our representatives counted 
five fire hydrants facing the wrong direction. M r. M elvin Bertrand and M r. Charles 
N olan, Town em ployees, also counted five fire hydrants. On N ovem ber 3, 1999, 
representatives of the Legislative Auditor revisited the Ida Road extension and found six 
fire hydrants installed. They noted that five of th e hydrants w ere appropriately facing th e 
road. However, the sixth hydrant w as facing the wrong w ay. M r. Adam Jones, Town 
em ployee, installed the hydrants. How ever, he could not explain why he only turned five 
of the hydrants and not the sixth hydrant. 
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LED A G rant 

In the response, M r, deLaunay fails to acknowledge that of the $7,193 in expenses 
subm itled to LEDA, $2,445 was disallowed because they included equipm ent costs that 
were not incurred. Furtherm ore, M r. deLaunay also does not m ention thal LEDA 
dem anded a refund of $2,445 from the Town for those costs not incurred. Of this $2,445 
dem anded by LEDA, the Town deducted $1,418 for ,,he cost of the sixth fire hydrant 
installed  on the Ida Road extension. 

D eficiencies N oted in the R esponse 

W e support the corrective action noted  in the response. How ever, we note that the response does 
not address certain m atters brought to m anagem ent's attention: 

2 

Tile response does not address the need for a policy prohibiting the acceptance of 
gifts by elected officials and em ployees from Town vendors. 

The response does not address the need for a policy prohibiting Town em ployees 
from participating in transactions prohibited by law , 

Tile response does not address further action with respect to access to un-metered 
water by M ayor Langlinais and M r. Scim em i. Furtherm ore, the response does not 
address the loaning of Town assets to M r. Scim em i. 
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M r. Daniel G . Kyle, CPA, CFE 
Legislative Auditor 
P. O . Box 94397 
Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9397 

February 4, 2000 

RE: Tow n of Broussard, Louisiana 

Dear M r. Kyle: 

ERA~H , LA 
(337 )937-5468 

M AU R IC E, LA 
(337) 893 2797 

B RO USSA R D ,[A 
(337 )839 1140 

W riter's e-m ail address 
delauna y@pldd, n et 

! am  w riting in response to the prelim inary  draft of the investigative report on the 
Tow n of Broussard forwarded w ith your letter of January  21, 2000. The Tow n of 
Broussard has been one of the fastest grow ing m unicipalities in the State over the last 
decade. During that period of tim e the revenues and expenses of the Tow n have 
grow n substantially, creating new challenges as experienced by any grow ing business. 
W hile the audit done by your office has pointed out the need to review controls in 
certain areas, the Tow n denies the part icular allegations contained in your investigative 
report . Each of the "findings" contained in the prelim inary report w ill be addressed 
separately. 

1 
EIV ED G I 

O n this m atter, as in others, your investigators have been overzealous in their attem pt 
to find facts to support their theories, and to establish w rongdoing w hen none existed. 
W e enclose a copy of the Affidavit of M r. Floyd Degueyter of CLM Equipm ent, Inc. In 
his Affidavit M r. Degueyter explains the circum stances under w hich equipm ent use was 
provided to M ayor Langlinais and to M r. Scim em i. It is disappointing at the least, and 
perhaps m alfeasance on the part of your investigators, to conclude that the use of his 
equipm ent constituted a "gift," that CL.M provided "free equipm ent," or that the 
com pensation received by M r. Degueyter w as of no use to him . M r. Degueyter's 
statem ent relative to the circum stances under w hich M ayor Langlinais used equipm ent 
from  CLM is supported by the w ritten contract between the parties executed in May, 
1996. 
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The value of the equipm ent use received by Mayor Langlinais in his exchange w ith Mr. 
Degueyter is grossly overstated in the proposed report. If your office w ill take the tim e 
to obtain an independent estim ate of the tim e necessary to construct a pond of the 
type and size of that of Mayor Langlinais, should quickly reveal that your investigators' 
estim ate is overstated. Tow n em ployees advise that they m ade it clear to your 
investigators that they could only estim ate the num ber of days that som e equipm ent 
w as on site, and that how m uch the equipm ent w as used w ould be pure speculation. 
Mayor Langlinais acknow ledges that since m ost of his work was done on weekends, the 
equipm ent som etim es rem ained on his property w ithout being used during the week. 
This practice is not uncom m on for equipm ent ow ners such as CLM because it saves 
hauling expenses. If the equipm ent becam e rented w hile it w as not being used, it 
would be picked up and delivered straight to the job site. 

Your report references the rental of equipm ent by Mayor Langlinais in connection w ith 
the construction of his hom e. ]t is im possible to determ ine w hether you are suggesting 
that there is anything im proper in connection w ith that transaction. M ayor Langlinais 
explained his use of equipm ent in connection w ith w ork on his hom e site, and furnished 
canceled checks show ing paym ent for the equipm ent. At the tim e your investigators 
were apparently satisfied w ith the explanation, and the reason for m entioning this 
transaction in your investigators' report rem ains unclear. 

M itch Scirnem i - CLM 

M itch Scim em i's use of the CLM equipm ent during the period in question is explained 
by M r. Degueyter in his Affidavit. W e have not seen the contract between M r. Scim em i 
and CLM , but your description of the contract appears to be consistent w ith M r. 
Degueyter's explanation. You give no explanation as to the m anner in w hich the 
equipm ent value w as calculated. How ever, according to M r. Degueyter the value of 
the equipm ent use in no w ay approached the value included in your findings. As in the 
case of Mayor Langlinais, Tow n em ployees clearly advised your investigators that they 
could only estim ate the tim e equipm ent w as at M r. Scim em i's hom e, and not the 
am ount of use. 

The business of the Town requires the purchase of supplies and m aterials from various 
vendors including, but not lim ited to Coburn W holesale Supply. M uch of the w ork done 
w ith Coburn, and other suppliers, is done through the bid process. M aintenance work 
does not require bid process, and the Tow n purchases from various suppliers to m eet 
its needs. The Tow n is satisfied that the purchases referred to in your report w ere 
necessary to m eet the Tow n's needs, w hich require the m aintenance of adequate 
inventory  of m aterials. 
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W e have confirm ed that M r. Scim em i did receive m aterials from.. Coburn. Coburn 
advises that M r. Scim em i w as building a hom e, w as purchasing all of his plum bing 
supplies from  Coburn, and as it does w ith other individuals, under sim ilar 
circum stances, it offered M r. Scim em i, free of charge, certain discontinued item s w hich 
it w as rem oving from  the for sale inventory of the com pany. In addition, at the tim e 
M r. Scim em i w as building his hom e, Coburn undertook representation of new appliance 
m anufacturers, w ho provided to Coburn, free of charge, prom otional item s w hich w ere 
specifically designated for delivery to custom ers. The com pany gave these appliances 
to M r. Scim em i and to other custom ors. It is notew ort hy that the Coburn 
representative felt your investigators w ere attem pting to intim idate him in their 
interview s. The representative advises that even though he gave full and com plete 
answers to questions posed to him , the investigators w ere obviously unsatisfied, and 
m ade references to having this m atter reviewed by a Grand Jury  to get to the truth. 
It w as not appropriate, w e suggest, for your investigators to use such tactics. 

The Tow n is unable to confirm that M r. Scim em i received and retained any cash from 
the transactions described in your findings. No Tow n resources w ere expended or lost 
as a result of the transactions described. It is w ort h noting how ever that M r. Billeaud 
has expressed his belief that your investigators attem pted to intim idate him  because 
the answ ers w hich he gave to their questions, although truthful, w ere not w hat they 
w anted to hear. He explains that the auditors returned to his business on 
approxim ately five occasions, asking the sam e questions on each occasion. W hen they 
were not satisfied with the answers, they m entioned such things as grand juries and 
perjury in an attem pt to secure inform ation different from that furnished to them . 

2 
P 

Tow n em ployees w ork a 40 hour w eek, w hich consists of four ten hour days, Monday 
through Thursday. Often em ployees supplem ent their incom e w ith work on Fridays 
and Saturdays for third parties. Tow n em ployees have verified that work done by 
them , for Service Com m unications, was done on a Friday or Saturday. 

Your investigators attem pted to find evidence to conclude that the w ork done for 
Serv ice Com m unications w as com pleted on a date that Tow n em ployees w ere on the 
Tow n payroll. The m ethodology em ployed by your investigators was to determ ine w ho 
did the work at Service Com m unications, then to find a weekend in w hich those sam e 
individuals w ere on the Tow n payroll. Based on that your investigators concluded that 
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the w ork done at Service Com m unications w as perform ed on February  21, 1998 and 
April 4, 1998, both of said days being clays in w hich Tow n em ployees w ho did the work 
for Service Com m unications w ere on the Tow n payroll. 

O n its face this m ethodology is totally unreliable. It would be proper to first identify 
the date that the w ork w as done, and then determ ine if the em ployees w ere on the 
payroll. The fallacy of the m ethodology em ployed by your investigators is m ade clear 
by the evidence w hich conclusively dem onstrates that the w ork in question could not 
have been done on the days noted by your investigators. 

The Tow n em ployees w ho did w ork for Service Com m unications w ere Messrs. Mel 
Bertrand, Larry  Cham pagne and Andrew W illiam s. The work done by these individuals 
included the site work, w hich included placem ent of dirt on the site to increase the 
elevation of the area w here the building w as to be located, the perform ance of dirt 
w ork in connection w ith construction of the parking lot, and the spreading of lim estone. 
The site w ork had to be done first, and the spreading of the lim estone w ould have been 
the last w ork perform ed by these individuals. 

The dirt w ork, w hich constituted m ost of the w ork done by these individuals, could not 
have been done on either February  21 or April 4. W e have furnished your office w ith 
a copy of the soil com paction test w hich w as run on February 5, 1998. The soil 
com paction test, according to the ow ner and contractor, and as explained to your 
office, had to be done after com pletion of the site w ork. The com paction test is done 
to insure that the dirt added to the site has been properly com pacted and is ready to 
receive the foundation. Thus, the dirt w ork could have possibly been perform ed on 
February  21. 

None of the w ork could have possibly been done on April 4, 1998. As explained above, 
all of the dirt work had to be com pleted before the date of the com paction test, 
February  5, 1998. Moreover, according to your investigators, the lim estone was 
delivered on April 6. The lim estone w as the very last thing to be done. By that tim e 
the building w as up, the concrete parking lot w as com pleted, and the lim estone w as 
being added to create a drive along the side and to the rear of the building. Clearly 
none of the dirt work for the concrete parking lot work could have been done on April 
4. Likew ise, the lim estone w ork could not have been done on April 4 since the 
lim estone had not yet been delivered. 

M r. Cham pagne and M r. Bert rand denied telling your investigators that overt im e paid 
by the Tow n for the w eekends of February  21 and April 4 w as for w ork that Serv ice 
Com m unications. They w ill testify, under oath if necessary , that the dates were the 
clear suggestions and directives of your investigators. They m ade it clear that they did 
not recall the dates, and that the only reason those two dates were suggested by the 
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investigators w as because those are tw o dates on w hich Tow n em p!oyees w ere clocked 
in. Moreover, it should be noted that M r. Cham pagne, according to your ow n 
investigators, w as not paid any overtim e for either of the two w eekends in question. 
If, as you suggest, Tow n em ployees were clocking in before perform ing work for third 
parties, w hy w ould M r. Cham pagne not have clocked in on either of those two 
w eekends? 

Sim ply stated, the m ethodology em ployed by your investigators is totally unreliable. 
The Tow n how ever w ill continue to investigate to determ ine, if it can, w hen the Service 
Com m unications work was in fact done. If the Tow n determ ines that Tow n em ployees 
were paid for tim e while they were working on the job for Service Com m unications, 
appropriate action w ill be taken. 

Taylor Steel 

We have concluded that the Taylor Steel project was performed on a Friday, when 
Tow n em ployees are not regularly on Tow n tim e. However, the evidence that we have 
uncovered m akes it clear that the w ork was not done on July 24, as your investigators 
concluded, but w as done on July 31. The w ork w as done by Messrs. Bert rand, 
Cham pagne, Jones, and W illiam s. None of them  w ere on the Tow n payroll on July 31. 

M r. Cham pagne and M r. Bert rand have each explained that before the w ork done by 
them  for Taylor Steel could be com pleted, an access hole had to be drilled into a 
sew erage tank. They explained that this w ork w as done by Louisiana Concrete Coring 
& Saw ing, Inc., either on the day of, or the day before the w ork w as perform ed by 
them . W e have obtained a copy of the invoice from Louisiana Concrete Boring & 
Saw ing, Inc. for this w ork, w hich shows that it was done on July 31, 1998. This is 
consistent w ith statem ents given by M r. Bert rand and M r. Cham pagne, and because 
this work had to be done before they could do their work, it conclusively shows that 
the work done by Taylor Steel was not perform ed on July 24 as found by your 
investigators. 

The evidence in connection with the Taylor Steel job further demonstrates the fallacy 
of the m ethodology em ployed by your investigators to determ ine w hen particular 
projects were done. 

r 

W e have verified that the project was perform ed on a weekend, when em ployees are 
norm ally not on Tow n tim e. The rem aining conclusions of your investigators are not 
supportable. 
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The findings are not consistent w ith the sw orn statem ents taken by counsel for the 
Tow n from Tow n em ployees. Tow n em ployees have m ade it clear that the w ork could 
not have been done on May 22. M r. Bertrand and M r. Cham pagne advised that they 
explained to the investigators that May 22 could not have been the date of that work 
because it conflicted w ith the m ethodology being used by the investigators to identify 
the date. O n the day in question M r. Dudley Hebert and M r. Louie Barber w ere w orking 
at M r. Scim em i's hom e. M r. Hebert w as the cook for all of the individuals, and M r. 
Barber was a laborer. Neither of these individuals are included on the Tow n's payroll 
for that day. In addition, M r. L.J. Bourque and Mr. Charles Nolan, as well as other 
individuals who did not work on this project, are shown as having worked for the Town 
on that day. If your investigators had follow ed their ow n m ethodology, they w ould 
have excluded May 22. 

This incident was confirm ed through interviews w ith Tow n em ployees and through 
sworn statem ents from Tow n em ployees. The em ployees have been required to 
reim burse the Tow n, and disciplinary  action w as taken w ith respect to that incident. 
The Tow n intends to continue its investigation into this incident. If it is determ ined 
that the em ployees did not give a full and com plete statem ent, furt her action on the 
part of the Tow n w ill be taken. 

3 F TO W N PIT IN 
TIM ELY M A N N ER 

Fill D irt: 

In Septem ber, 1998, Jonathan LeBlanc hauled dirt to the Mayor's hom e. According to 
your auditors, the m aterial consisted of 196 yards of "fill dirt." In truth and in fact, this 
w as not "fill dirt," but was clay m aterial. As evidenced by letter of W alter Com eaux 
dated January 27, 2000, the current delivered price for this type of m aterial is $2.94 
per yard. Mayor Langlinais obtained a price from Jonathan LeBlanc in Septem ber of 
1998, a little over a year ago, of $2.50 per yard. He paid Mr. LeBlanc $492 on 
Septem ber 14, 1998, which was alm ost exactly $2.50 per yard, assum ing the total 
m aterial delivered consisted of 196 yards. The Mayor believed at the tim e that the 
price paid to M r. LeBlanc included the m aterial and delivery , and that M r. LeBlanc had 
paid the Tow n for the dirt . 

During the investigation the auditors correctly noted that the Tow n had not been paid 
for the dirt. In response to that finding the Mayor paid the Town $1 per yard, or $140, 
as show n by Tow n of Broussard invoice dated October 29, 1999. W hen the auditors 
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alleged that there had been m ore dirt delivered, the Mayor paid the Town another $98 
on Decem ber 21, 1999. In truth and in fact the Mayor has overpaid for the m aterials 
he purchased from  the Tow n of Broussard. 

Topsoil 

The contentions w ith respect to topsoil are essentially correct. The Mayor purchased 
topsoil valued at $437, plus tax. Through a clerical error, he was not tim ely invoiced. 
W hen he was invoiced in October, 1999, he paid for the m aterials. 

The Mayor has paid a total of $1,210.81 for approxim ately 196 yards of clay material, 
and 70 yards of topsoil. If com puted at fair m arket value, the Mayor has paid 
approxim ately 33%  m ore than w hat the auditors calculated to be the fair m arket value 
of the m aterials w hich he received. 

The Tow n w ill adopt and im pose new conditions relative to the sale of dirt or other 
m aterials belonging to the Tow n to third parties. A recom m endation is being m ade 
that the Board of Alderm en adopt an ordinance requiring that any sale of Tow n 
m aterial be m ade only after the m atter is brought before the Board of Alderm en for 
approval. 

4 
T 

F 
'S DIRT T 

The Tow n has been unable to obtain a statem ent from  M r. Scim em i. Statem ents 
apparently given by Mr. LeBlanc and Mr. Bertrand are inconsistent with sworn 
statem ents given to undersigned counsel. The Tow n w ill continue its investigation of 
the m atter. If your findings appear to be correct, the appropriate parties will be 
required to reim burse the Tow n for any dirt that w as rem oved. In addition, disciplinary  
action as appropriate w ill be taken. 

5 

The Mayor constructed a new hom e on the rear of his property, and paid, as the 
auditors correctly noted, for installation of the water line that ran from  his front 
property line to his hom e. The newly installed water line replaced the original water 
line that ran to his old hom e, approxim ately 100 feet, and then added approxim ately 
100 feet to reach his new hom e. 
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The Tow n engineer has confirm ed that it is correct to install flush-out valves on dead 
end runs according to the "Ten States Standards" w hich are engineering standards 
followed by the Tow n. According to these standards, w hen looping of w ater lines does 
not occur, there should be a device installed for flushing out dead end lines. The flush- 
out valve on ttle M ayor's line is consistent w ith other w ater lines w ithin the Tow n of 
Broussard. 

There is no allegation of im proper use of w ater by the Mayor through the flush-out line. 
A flush-out valve w ould require a 2" hose, and the M ayor does not ow n any, and does 
not know of any 2" hoses. 

The auditors incorrectly concluded that because the w ater line is next to the M ayor's 
hom e, the Tow n now has the responsibility of m aintaining an extra length of 
approxim ately 100 feet of water line. The legal basis of this conclusion is questionable. 

The Tow n has not assum ed m aintenance of the w ater line. The Tow n has never 
assum ed responsibility for m aintaining the w ater line on the Mayor's property, and has 
no obligation to m aintain it. If your investigators' theory w as correct, the Tow n w ould 
have been under the obligation to m aintain the original line up to the Mayor's old 
hom e. In truth and in fact, it w as replaced at the expense of the M ayor. 

Your investigation points out that Mitch Scimem i purchased $500 worth of Town 
m aterials to install w ater and sew er lines on his property. They claim  he received the 
m aterials in M arch of 1998, but did not pay the Tow n until March, 1999. 

The Tow n does not know w hen your investigators learned of this action. The Tow n 
officials did not becom e aw are of it until the report w as issued. By the tim e the report 
w as issued, M r. Scim em i had already paid for the m aterials. The Tow n can take no 
further action w ith respect to this particular transaction. 

6. M A 

Your findings in connection w ith this m atter are clearly erroneous. Moreover, the 
findings deliberately m isquote the application. W e conclude that the m isquote is 
deliberate on the part of your office because this part icular item  w as discussed in detail 
in the exit conference. 
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Your findings state that "The com pleted application signed by Mayor Charles Langlinais 
states that the proposed w ater line w ill serve "approxim ately ten businesses presently, 
plus future developm ent.'" Your auditors conclude that this alleged statem ent is false 
because there is only one business located on the Ida Road extension. 

During the exit conference the auditors w ere questioned as to w hether the application 
in fact stated that the proposed w ater line w as to serve ten presently existing 
businesses. W e w ere assured that this language w ould be checked. 

The grant application specifically states on page 3 that 

"This w ill allow us to serv e approxim ately ten businesses along Ida Road 
w ith w ater." 

There is no representation in this section, as you suggest, that there are ten 
businesses presently located there. 

O n page 4 of the application, the applicant is asked to note the total num ber of persons 
im pacted/affected as a result of the project/grant. In response to this information, the 
Mayor stated that: 

"Approxim ately ten businesses, plus future developm ent there and city 
population of 4,105." 

Now here is the quote contained in your proposed report included in the grant 
application, and certainly in no sense could it be said that the actual wording in the 
grant attem pted to convey the m eaning w hich your investigators have concluded. If 
the auditors had included the entire quote, w ith the questions to w hich the inform ation 
w as responding, it w ould clearly show that no false statem ents w ere m ade. 

The auditors go on to com ment that the Town requested and received $20,279 of 
reim bursem ents from ORD, and of that am ount the Town received $2,376 for materials 
not used. This is supported by the auditor's contention that there w ere only five fire 
hydrants installed, w hereas the Tow n claim ed reim bursem ent for eight. The Tow n 
subsequently refunded $2,376 to ORD. An actual count of the fire hydrants shows that 
six w ere installed. 

LED A G rant 

Your investigation also com m ents upon the LEDA grant of $15,000. The auditors 
correctly note that on October 11, LEDA requested that the Tow n provide 
docum entation to show how the m oney was spent. The auditors failed to point out 
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that docum entation was im m ediately furnished to LEDA, noting th~3t $7,193 had been 
spent at that point, and that the Tow n intended to use the rem ainder of the funds for 
hydro-seeding the area to prevent erosion. LEDA responded, indicating that the m oney 
should not be used for hydro-seeding, and requested reim bursem ent of the balance of 
the funds. The Tow n com plied. The auditors note that the unused portion of the grant 
w as reim bursed, but fail to describe the interim correspondence w here the request was 
m ade to approve the spending for hydro-seeding. 

Your investigation into the Tow n w as apparently com m enced, or at least prolonged, as 
a result of allegations and com plaints m ade by political opponents of the current 
adm inistration. Citizens have noted that your investigators have suggested that the 
current adm inistration w ould no longer be in office after their investigation was 
com plete. This apparent lack of im partiality by your investigators has been borne out 
by the com plaints of intim idating tactics, by conclusions w hich are inconsistent w ith 
sw orn statem ents given by Tow n em ployees~ and by the refusal of your investigators 
to change conclusions w hich are contrary  to undisputed, independent docum entation 
such as the soil com paction tests relating to the Service Com m unications w ork, and the 

boring work relating to the Taylor Steel project. 

As noted at the outset of this response, the Tow n has attem pted to reexam ine its 
procedures in several areas in an effort to im plem ent better controls. The Tow n has 
im plem ented new procedures to identify the part icular w ork being carried on by its 
m aintenance personnel at any part icular tim e. This w ill enable the Tow n, or 
independent auditors, to accurately identify the w ork being done by m aintenance 
personnel at any given tim e. 

The Tow n is also in the process of developing policies and procedures relative to the 
sale of Tow n m aterials and property to third parties. These policies and procedures, 
if they allow the sale to third part ies at all, w ill provide for accurate docum entation and 
tim ely invoicing of all transactions. 

The Tow n is continuing its investigation of several of the m atters contained in your 
report, including (1) the work at Service Com m unications, (2) installation of the 
Scimem i water line, and (3) the removal and sale of dirt from the Town pit without 
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reim bursem ent to the Tow n. Should the investigation reveal additional inform ation 
w hich leads the Tow n to conclude that the Tow n resources have been im properly used 
or applied, appropriate action w ill be taken. 



F c b -0 7 -O O 0 3 :4 3 P P L d D A t t o r n e y s A t L a w  3 1B -2 3 5 -4 3 8 2 

W A R R [ N A P ER R IN 
DO N ALD D LAN D RY 
G ERALD C . O(LAU N AY 
aLLA N L D U R AN O ' 
t LLM -TAKAT ION I 

SCO TT A D ARTEZ 
JEAN O U ELLET"" 

-' Qvt.t: , lgoo, ..D ~o~,*,... 

D ATE : 

TO : 

FAX #: 

FR O M : 

N UM B ER  0  

PERRIN , LAN DRY, deLAUNAY & DURAN D 
A TTO R N EYS AT LA W  

A PA R TN E R S H IP O F LAW  C O R PO R ATIO N S 
P .O . B O X 53597 

LA FAYETTE , LO U IS IA N A "70505 
FA X (3 1B ) 235-4382 

2 - -)- "3.0 08 

O FFIC E S 

225 LA RU E FRANC E 
LAFAYETTE LA 7OSOB 
{3 1B I233-~B3Z 
(3 lB) 237-8500 

ERAIH , LA 
13 1B)937.54~8 

M AU RIC E. LA 
t3 18)e93-2797 

/g O /)J~  ~I # ~ ~  ..~ .r ~/ , t'J T'- T O  

II, II ~l, * li li~ * ll~ i[, li~ tt ttil i. ~l. ,* al, li, li, li, * i il l Ill * * i I I ll l ll ll 4,1 1 11 11 1 111 1 1 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 i .. . i. . i. i. . * e 

The original oflbis fax w ill be sent as follows 

( ) Ordinary M ail / d-Deliv.red 

will be the only form  of delivery 

lill<llllllllfl llili, i* Ii li I~ it lit, li~llill~ Iillflli i i i il l ll ll li l ll ll l ll ll l l llll l lil l l l ll l l l l l l il . ~ . i. li .. i i i * 

CONIRDIENTI AIJr~  NON CE 
TIlE DOCUM F_.~  ACCOM rANYI~ C. THIS TIELECOW  "I'RA/Ce~ L~ ION CoNlr,~~  CONE/DI:IqT/~  ~qFORMA TR)H B~LONC/,~G TO TIE 
$~ i3or~  w llIciI IL~ I,,JEGA f.J~Y rRJ~ I]..E431ED, TIRE ~ OIKM ATION IS IB~lrI~rDIED ONI.,Y rol~ ~  ~  OF ~  INDIVIDUAL OR 
NA.I~[D AIOV~. |E YOU t4~RjE NOT ~  I~ [']~ B  ~Ll"~ El~ri~, YOU ~  |UEPJ[~y ~'~lilLIt|l~  TIP~ T ~  DIcL"LOSU1KIr COpyING. 
DL~FIRIIIU'rlON OR TAIK.ING OF ANY ACTION IN RF, IJANC1E ON "IPIE  coffrr~rl~  olr ~  TIE/JEL~ PI]ED IN}~)RM ATION IS EI1KICT1LY 
PRO HIE rrED. IF' YOU IIAV~ IEECIEIIAED ~  TrdI~ COI,Y IN IEP.itOR. PLg.,.A~ ~ IM M IEDIAI"IE1Ly NOl"ll~  MS IBY T1ELIEPilUN~ TO /dlCRANC [ 
FO R ,4, RLP'I1UR~ O F TIlE IX J C U P. I E-N'TS TO US, 



Fe b -O 7 -O O O 3 :4 4 P P L d D A t t o e ney s A t L aw  3 18 -2 3 5 -4 3 8 2 p .O 2 

STATE O F LO UISIA NA 
PA RISH O F LA FAYETTE 

BEFO RE M E, the undersigned Notary Public, personally cam e and appeared 

FLO YD R. D EG EYTERt an individual dom iciled in Lafayette Parish, Louisiana, w ho, 

al~er first being duly sworn, did depose and state 

A~ ant is the ow ner of CLH Equipm ent, Inc., a Louisiana corporation, the 

principal business of w hich Is the sale and rental of construction and earth m oving 

equipm ent. CLM ow ns and rents a large am ount of equipm ent to businesses and to the 

general public. Equipm ent is rented to custom ers w ith or w ithout operators , and for 

various lengths of tim e, depending upon the needs of the custom er 

From  tim e to tim e in the past, but: not necessarily on a regular basis, Affiant has 

m ade trade-offs with people known to Afflant, whereby Individuals were allowed to use 

equipm ent w hich was otherwise not being rented by CLM, in return for m aterials or 

services that were  of value to Affiant and/or CLM. In the spring of 1996, Afflant 

entered Into a trade-out agreem ent with Charles E. Langlinais, Mayor of the Town of 

Broussard, w hich agreem ent w as m em orialized in part by a letter agreem ent dated 

May 3, 1996. 

Pursuant to the arrangem ent as described in the M ay 3, 1996 fetter agreem ent, 

CLH allowed Mayor Langlinals to use equipm ent to com plete construction of a two acre 

pond in return for approxim ately 4,000 board feet of cypress logs ow ned by Langlinals 

At the tim e the agreem ent was m ade, Afflant believed It to be a fair trade. Afflant Is 

fam iliar w ith the equipm ent operating tim e necessary to construct  a pond consisting 
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of two acres, and believes It to fairly approxim ate the value of the cypress logs given 

to Affiant in exchange for the use of said equipm ent. 

The cypress logs were received by Afflant and delivered to pro perty ow ned by 

Affiant on Fontlleu Road off of Highw ay 92 in St. Martin Parish. Afflant used som e of 

the cy press In connection with the construct ion of a bridge on the pro perty. Som e 

cy pre ss Is cut and is stockpiled on the property. Som e of the cypress w as not used 

and w as discarded. Am ant believes that had he been required to purchase other 

lum ber for the pro jects on which the cy press logs were used, he would have had to pay 

appro ximately $1.50 per board foot. At the time the equipment was made available 

to Mayor Langlinais, that equipment was not in use on other jobs, and Am ant believes 

that he received m aterials w hich were at least equal in value to the use value of the 

equipm ent furn ished to M ayor Langlinals. 

Affiant was questioned by m em bers of the Office of the Legislative Auditor for 

the State of Louisiana concern ing the equipm ent used by M ayor Langlinals. Affiant 

explained to the representatives of the Auditors Offi ce that, from tim e to tim e, he 

trades equipm ent use for services or m aterials with individuals w hom he has com e to 

know . Affiant explained to the Auditors the factual history recited above. During the 

course of the Interview with the Auditors , the Auditors repeatedly attem pted to 

"suggest~ facts. Am ong other things, the Auditors attem pted to charact erize Mayor 

Langllnais as a close pers onal friend, and further attem pted to charact erize the tra de- 

off described above as one in w hich CLH pro vided ~free" use of equipm ent to Mayor 

Langlinals. Affiant explained that Mayor Langlinats w as not a close pe rs onal friend, 

although he knew Mayor Langllnals well through business experiences. Am ant did not 

represent to the Auditors that the cy pre ss logs furn ished to him w ere  of no use, since, 
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n fact, the logs w ere In fact used by Affiant In the im provem ent of his property. In 

addition, Affiant did not represent to the Auditors that the equipm ent w as being 

pro vided to Mayor Langlinais ~free," but explained to them that the equipm ent was 

provided as a trade-off for receipt of m aterials the value of w hich Affiant felt to closely 

appro xim ate the use of the equipm ent. 

At the tim e Affiant and Mayor Langlinais executed the agreem ent of May 3,1996, 

and at all tim es during w hich M ayor Langlinais dealt w ith Affiant, M ayor Langlinais 

m ade it clear that any trade-out had to be of equal value. He specifically m ade it clear 

to Affiant that because of his position as Mayor of the Tow n of Bro ussard, he wanted 

no favors or free use of equipm ent, and that all transactions had to be on an above- 

board basis. 

Affiant also had an agreem ent w here he received services from  M itch $clm em i 

and allowed M r. Scim em i the use of CLM equipm ent in return  for those services. In 

and around the sum m er of 1995, Affiant undertook substantial Im provem ent to the 

pro perty owned by him off Fontlieu Road In St. Martin Parish, Louisiana. This project 

included, am ong other things, clearing of overgrown property, the construction of a 

pond consisting of approxim ately 3 to 3t/= acres, and the m ovem ent of earth to pro vide 

pro per drainage on the pro perty. M r. Sclm em i perform ed valuable and extensive 

serv ices to Afflant in connection with this project, which included the ope ra tion of 

equipm ent necessary to pe rform  im provem ents to the properly. M r. Scim em i pro vided 

serv ices w ithout charge to Affiant on num erous weekends. Had Affiant had to hire 

equipm ent operators for this project, it would have cost Afflant substantial sum s. At 

the tim e M r. Sclm em l agreed to provide serv ices tO Afflant, It w as also agreed by 

Afflant that M r. Scim em i would be able to use CLM equipm ent fro m  tim e to tim e as 
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com pensation for the work done by him . The equipm ent provided to M r. Scim em i was 

equipm ent: not otherw ise being rented at the tim e, and was used by Mr. Sclm em i for 

the Im provem ent of certain property owned by him . Affiant allowed M r. Sclm em i to 

use equipm ent periodically from and after the sum m er of 1995, until Affiant considered 

that the fair rental value of the equipm ent used by Mr. Scim em i equaled the value of 

the services pro vided by M r. Sclm em l 

Afflant described the above transaction to the Auditors during the interview 

given to them . At no tim e did Afftant tell the Auditors  that M r. Scim em i w as allowed 

to use equipm ent free of charge as a favor to a friend. Afflant explained that Mr. 

ScJm em l's use of equipm ent was in return for labor pro vided in connection w ith the 

Im pro vem ent of Afflant's pro perty. In this connection Affiant Invited the auditors to visit 

his property to see the nature of the im provem ents w hich w ere m ade, and In fact  the 

Auditors  accepted the Invitation, visited the property, and saw the extensive land work 

w hich had in fact  been perform ed 

As in the case of Mayor Langlinals, the Auditors attem pted to "suggest" to Afflant 

that the equipm ent use provided to M r. Scim em l was a favor given to a good custom er 

or friend. At no tim e did Affi ant ever express the trade-off with Mr. Sclm em l as being 

a favor, but at all tim es m ade it clear that the equipm ent use pro vided to Mr. Scim em i 

w as in return for equipm ent operator services w hich had actually been received by 

Affiant from M r. Sclm em 

SW O RN TO A N D SUBSCRIBED 
2000. 
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E xhibit 1 

Agreemenl 

The following Charles E. Langlinais herein referred "to as vendor and M itchel J. (M itch) 
Scimem J and Heywood Adams, herein both rele~ed to as contractors, cnterinto this 
agreem ent on the below date....said agreem ent stipulates the following: 

The contractors will provide m anpoxver, equipment, skill and "talent to construct 
four fish ponds of approx. 70 by 200 ft. each along with necessary roads to and on the 7 
acres leased by vendor from the Bayou Tortue Livestock in Sec. -heoy 76/77,T 10S, R6E 
in St. M artin Parish, La. 

Vendor will provide the supplies as needed but not limited to the refilling of 4" waterwcll 
on Aubrey Reed's property and piping and/or pumps for aeration of said ponds. 

It is further agreed that should any sale be m ade of said property to any third party, said 
parties hereto have to agree betwee n all three par'lies herein to the sale and consideration 
should he at least a total of $7500.00. Further should any of the said three  parties 
want to sell to one or both of the other parties, the sale price shall be $2500 or a value 
agreed to by all three  parties. 

Further, should any sale be m ade t)f the property after it has been improved, the following 
will apply: 
1 - Any reasonable labor can be charged  to the total value of property. 
2- Any reasonable improvement can be charged to the total va/ue of the property. 
3- Any proceeds of any sale after all improvement~ shall be divided as follows: 

A- $2500 to each partner (raw property); 
B- Any approved disbursem ents/contributions by one or any of the parties will 

serve to proportionately increase said party's interest in sale proceeds, i.e. 
the raw property base will he $750(I and say party A increases the value to 
$8500 by clearing an d gnthbing said tract, then party A's share of a $8500 sale 
will be the original $250(1 share (each) plus $1C~313 towards 'the improvement 
m ade to property by party A, whereas after improvements, each party that 
contributes should benefit by their effort add additional investm ent in additional 
added value. 

4- Any an d all improvements shall be approved by all three parties hereto. 
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That previously, CEL 
and M iteh Seim em i 
had done work for 
Floyd D egueyter. . . 
and our previous 
agreem ent was that 
we w ould "trade out" 
our w ork as provided 
for equipm ent needed  
and used ... 

The tolal estim ated  
board footage of 

cypress is 4000 feet (+ 
board feet).., and that 
both parties agree that 
the "swap" of trees for 
eq uipm ent use is of 
equal value... 

M ay 3, 1996 

Exhibit 2 

M r. Floyd Degueyt~r 
CLM  Equipment Inc. 
Broussard, La. 

Re: Agreerrient relative to exchange or "~ ~ind" swap of 
cypress for use of equipment on weekends 

Dear Floyd, 

Pursuant to our eonversation of late last week, this is a summary of agreement by 
and between the both of us: 

to an d done by 
duplicate, one 

set out. 
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This sale is m ade and 
accepted for the sum 
of Ten dollars & 
00/100 Dollars, cash 
in hand paid... 

E xhibit 3 

9"7 -008202 
O,C. "DAN" GUILLIOT Cash Sale 

ER . F 

The W EST HALF of a pax~  con~ g 0.958 acres, per Plat of Survey by Keam~  
Font~not, LS, dated June 20,1995, t~ ord~  in tlxe records of Lefayetle Parish., Lotd~ nx 
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AC'I'OT COI~',F,L~ ; 

BYs CHARLES Z. 

E xhibit 4 

,,L: ,,h t~ 
LAF/i'[;; 

FIL~O ,'d, ~, 

. ,,
" '~ - 0500; I 98,0'~ 17 

STATE OF LOUI~IAMA 

ANDa MITCHELL J. SCIMEMI ET AL PARISH 

BE iT KNOWN that on this 16th day of 

1998, before =e, the undersigned, a ~otmry Public in and  fox 

the pa~leh el Lafayette+ La.e duly e~ laalunad end q~a~Ifle~ 
As lush personally came and appe ared CHARLES E. LANGLINAIE, 

ar~ hie wife, CAROLYN GO~ R0~, both residents of the Pariah of 

Lafayette, La., and somet~mee hereinafter referred t. .s Ven~ . 
and MITCHELL L. SCIM~41, and his wife PATRICIA ERUMSON 

both residents of the Pariah of Lafayette Louisiana, sometimes 
hereiafter referred to as Vendees, who declared that by an 

act passed before Irene David, Notary PUbliC dated Peb. 28, . 

1997 recorded March 12, 1997 as act number 97-008202 of 

Another error was m ade 
in that in th e original act 
of sale the consideration 
was incorrectly recited 
to be $I0.00, whereas 
the actual consideration 
paid was $5,000.00. 

lo~s: 

re- 

cell the Western 100 feet of the 0,958 acrz tract. 

That in view of the foregoing and for the same con- 
sideration, also corrected herein, the parties have agreed 

to reform and correct the aforementioned description, eo as 

to have the same to read as follows: 

That certa in pa rcel of ground situated in Section 28, Town- 
ship 10 SOUth , Range 5 East, Pariah of Lafayette, La., 
co ntaining 0.379 acres, measuring 100 feet in parallel lines 
running East and Went by 16S feet in parallel linen runnlng 
North nnd South, and be lr~ boundred  North by  th e Town of 
Brouesard, La., South by ~Idgevlew Subdivlalon, EaSt by  
property of Charles Langllali et al, said tract being 
designated as Tract 1 On 8 plat of survey by Walter S. Co~eaux 
Ill, Land Surveyor, of date Nov. 5, 1998 hereto atta ch6d 
paraphud for identification with thls Instrt~ent and ~ da 
a part hereof, the property herein acid being described as 
be ing enclosed within th e letters A, B, C, D a A, as ehowh 
on the plat. The property being bo unded on the Wast by 

rty of Mrs. ~mile G. Girouard or assigns. 

_ _ -- - - --~ Another error was ~ade in th at in th e original act 

of sale the consideration was inco rrectly recited to be 

$I0.00, whereas the actual consideration paid wag $5~00d.00, 
That in view of the foregoing the parties have 

agreed  to furth er reforT~ and correct th e aforem entioned  portion 

of th e sale dealing with t~.2 consideration, to read as followas 
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Exhibit 4 (Cont.) 

This sale Ls made end aoma pted re: and Ln considoritlo~ 

of the svw of FIVlt THOUSAND 8 HO/IO0 ($5,000.00) DOM~ , mash 
~n hand l~ id for which acquittance In herein granted. 

The parties hereto re~ rttze the exiet.enoe of a prior 

exlltl~  right of way or servitude of paeBage being 30 feet 
in Width along the Southez~ boundary of th e 0.958 acre tract 
and z~utninq ~'ro~ LOUl Street ~n e~,lCeetCerl.y dlz~ection for th e 

blm efit of the O,gS8 acre tract ~  property located ~.o th e 
tlestj and th ey do hereby ra~ify and oonfirl~, tt.s existence 

end loQat~on. 

The parties and I notary do hereby authorize end  

direct the Clerk o~ Court to make ~entio~ Of the within act 
o~ correction in th e morgan of his records of the'ori~~nal 

act to serve as occaeAon ,,=~  require. 
Thus done and passed An the pa rish of Lafayette~ I~.., 

on th e day and date above n~ '~tioned  in the pz'esenoe of the 

undersigned witnesses who sign wit h apPearers and me, 
NO~a~ . after due reading o~' the vhole , 
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~LE~  OF 
COURTP, ECORDER 

E xhibit 5 

i0~~  Date filed 

BE IT KNOWN~  ~  ~  16th ~y o! 

in ebc ye~ o~our Lord ~ etcen bun<bed znd 98 bdo~ try, F. Prod Mouto~ 

Nouey )~ ic b ~df~ u]d patiih a~ .dulycomm~ loned and quelifi~ ~ t~Th. per~o~L~y~ d 

MITCREDL O. SC~ , and h~s w~fe, PAI'RICIA BR~ ON both 
reeldents of The Parleh of Lafayette Lou/slana, 

Who dcd~eal ~  fo~ ~0 co.~ -mio, he~,~neQ~r mendonea they do ~ ~  pc~m~, ~  t.mda ~ d 

d~t~  ~  I'~11 Ip~ emte~ oflidc aed f~c flora I~ ~nmmbmnccs ~nd wkh ~ubro~ ion to e~l their 

Date of 
execution 
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Exhibit 5 (Cont.) 

~:?';~.~ I~":T~'~'8rfort1"998lwill be rpro--rated and 5.pa~" 9b~ the dPu~ h~eer "re 
,i 

his /ale is made and accepted >r and in the consideration of e sum of TEN THOUSAND NO/100 ($10,000.00)... 
l \ t NO ~ Ut~ I~ynaeet of all t~us~ ----:---=-~l Itphm the ~ ~ ~ f~ 

:~1~arl9 -Thlslal~i~madeand~ forandino~nskl=liltonot'll~lmm ol" TEN THOUSAND & NO/lOq 

: 
$10,000.00| 

--- ~ .~ m~ ,- ,,.~  ~ .t ~  

Pur~.~  d~ a~ s w~h ~ ica~ required by Art~  3M~4 of tl~ ~  Cr~a 

ofth~ Bu~,~.lod ahto witb thepeoduofioo oftAxroO~pU roquirodbyhtw
. 

/ Do~  mad ~  at t~  ~ m h of Laf~lyette ,l~ad~a.a,o. ll~ d~ aadda~ Im~  
, 

lall~ lm~ ~f Pet Lindaey aad Ro
nnie Reaaux : 

oamp~  ~ 0 who s~  ~  ~  and m~ o~u~ . ~a= du~ ~  ~  a~ ~ o~ 
.i 

~ ~ :, ~ .: 
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May 15, 1995 

Mr. Floyd Degueyter 
CLM Equipment 
Broussard, LA. 

E xhibit 6 

Re: Contract of "trade out" of rental equipment 

Dear Floyd 

SEP 1 1995 

This letter will serve as agreement by and between CLM and myself to the 
following: 

l- I (Sclmeml) will clear and operate CLHts equipment on property that Floyd 
recently purchased near Cade (31 acres); 

2- CLH will provide Sclmeml, rent free, equipment to use to build a 
small pond in St. Martin Parish in the near future. 

We agree that this "trade out" of equipment vs. personal services is of 
"equal value". 

If this is in agreement, please sign below. 

Sincerely, 

Hitch Sclmeml 
I00 Headland elf. 
Broussard, LA. 70518 

Agreed to and aeeepted 

This is the contract referred to on page 2 of the report 
that w as provided by M r. Scim em i. 
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E xhibit 7 

R e co m m en d e d  
S tan d a rd s 

F o r W ater W o rks 

LLINOIS IOW A M INNESOTA 
NDIAN/' M ICHIG AN M ISSOURI 

1982 
NEW  YORK PENNSYLVANIA O NTARIO 
OHIO W ISCONSIN 
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DII~TRIBU1 ION :} T,STEIV~5 

8.0 P/IA TERIA LS 

Exhibit 7 (Cont.) 

8.0.1 Stands1 ds. m ateriels selection 

PA RT 8 

PIDO. fittlnOs, valves 0nd (ice hydrants shall conform to the latest standards issued hy the AW W A. 
~f such sta,~d~rds exist, and be 6cceplable to the tevlow hlg &ulhorily In fl~e ah~ollce of such slan- 
t;,]rd~, m ateri~ls m ooting applicable Product Standards and aeceptebk~ to the oev~ew lng eulhotfty 
,,lay t*o seluclad. Spaeial attention shall b~ given to sefectln9 pipe m aterials w hich v~il~ p~rJ~ et 
OilBinr.t both intorrtol al~d external pips ~;utroaion. 

8.0.;.~ Ue~~d m aterials 

v:ate~ r~m ins w hich have boon used previously for conveying potable w ater m ay be roused w a- 
y'dad they m eet the above slandards eT~d have been restored pcactioelly to Iheir original condition. 

8.0.3 Joir*ts 

Packit~l and Jointing materials used in the joints of pipe shell meet the standards of the AW VVA and 
trio rovlewing aulhorlty. Pipe having mechariical joints or slip.on joints with tubber gaskets is 
prelerrcd. 

ILl W A TEJl tVIA IN D ESIGN 

8.1.1 Pressure 

All w ater m ains. Including Ihoso not designed to provide fire ptote~lion, shell be sized slier a 
hytlraullc anab/sls based on flow den~ands and pressuoe reqoirem enls Tile system shaft he 
desigrl~d |o IslRintairl a m ~nlnlum  pleasure of 20 psi at ground level el all points Jr1 fhe distflbutiotl 
syr, tcn~ unclo~ iiII condilions of flow . 1he IlornlaJ w olking IorllSSuro ill tile distrlbutioll ~ystem  should 
b0 0pt>loxim l)te~Y 60 psi sod not tess than 35 psi. 

8.1.2 D IaIY=O tel 

1" he n~ini~ um ~ize of w atel m ain tel prov)ding fire p~ofecfion and se~ ing file hydrants shall be six- 
inch dia.~otor Larger size m ains w ill he oequired if i~eGessety to allow the w lthd,aw al of Use 
lequtfod fire fh~w w hile m ainlalni~0 tho m inim um residual pressule spocifi~d in Section 8.1 t 

8.1.3 I:lre Pl*otocti0n 

W hen fke protection is to be p~ovided. ~yste~  design ~hould bo such that fire flow s and facilities 
ate in acco~d.~nce w ith Ihe retluite~T~enlS of the stale Insurance Services Office. 

lequhemel~ts Shall be justified by hydraulic analysis end future water 
nty In =peclal ckcum ~tences. 

Ca,ry flre-flow s shall t~ot hove fire hydr0l~ts conr~e~led to them 

83 
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W here dead 
end m ains 
occur... 

Flushing 
devices should 
be sized to 
provide 
flows.., in 
the w ater m ain 
being flushed. 

D IST 

Exhibit 7 (Cont.) 

8.2 

Sufficient valves shell be provld0d on w ater m ains so that inconv0nience ~nd SOllitary hazecds w ifl be 
tlfin?f.~izcd dudntl repairs Valves should be located el not m ore tllan 500 foot intervals it1 com m ercial 
dishicts and at lies m ole th~rl one block or 800 foot ir',tervols in other dist(icts. 

8.3 ItY O RA N T$ 

8.3.1 Location and spac|ng 

l lydr&nts should be provided at each retreat intersection Bed at interm ediate points t~ tw een inter- 
sections as recom m ended by the stale Insurance Services O ffice. Generally, hydrent spacing m ay 
range from 350 to CO0 f(~et depending on the area being served. 

8.3.2 V alves nnd nozzles 

Fire hydfen Is should have a bottom  valve size of e I least five inches, one 4-1/2 inch pum per nozzle 
at",d tw o 2- I/2 i~oh ~ozzlos. 

8.3.3 H ydrant leads 

lhe hydranl lead shall be a m ini/31um of six i,tches in diam eter. Auxiliary valves shall be Jnslalled in 
all hydral~t loads. 

8.3.4 D rainage 

ttvdrs=d dralrls should be plugged, W hen the drt~ins ere p|~ ged the t0a=rels m ust be pum ped dry 
after use during freezing w oatimr. W here hydrant dreirts are not plugged, a gravel pocket or dry 
w ell shall be provided unless the! natural soils w ill provide adequate drainage, Hydrant drains sh~ll 
f~ot be connected to or located w ithin 10 feet of sanitary sew ers or storm  drains. 

8.4 A IR IIELIEF VA LV ES; VA LVE, M ETER A N D SLO W -O FF C H A M BERS 

8.4.1 A ir relief valves 

A t high polnts in w ater m ains w here air can acetlm ulale provisions shall be m ade to rem ove the elf 
by m eans of hydrants or air reliel valves, Aul0m t|tlc air relief valves shell not be used in situations 
w here flooding of tile rnar~hole or Chatll~e~ m ay OCc~=r. 

8.4 .2- A ir relief valve piping 

The open end of an air're)ief pipe from  autom atic valves shell be extended to el least one fool 
~bove grade and provided w ith o screened, dow nw ard-facing elbow  The plpn hem  ~ m ~nu,IIv 
(~p~rated valve Should be  extended to the lop of the pit. 
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E xhibit 8 

This is the un-m etered flush-out valve located on M r. Scim em i's property. A s one can see, there 
is a standard 5/8-inch hose connection attached. The hose that is attached to the connection leads 
to a house that M r. Scim em i inform ed us belongs to his daughter. 
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E xhibit 9 
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E xhibit 10 

This is the un-m etered flush-out valve located on M ayor Langlinais' property 
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Exhibit 11 

STA TE O F LO UISIA N A 
PA RISH O F EA ST BA TO N RO U G E 

A FFID A VIT 

BEFO R E M E TH E UND ERSIG N ED AUTH O R ITY PER SO N ALI,Y CAM E AND 
A PPEA RED ERN EST K . LEV Y W IIO SA ID : 

On O ctober 6, 1999, M r. Floyd D egueyter, President and CEO of CLM  Equipm ent m et w ith 
representatives of the Legislative A uditor to discuss issues concerning our investigation of the 
Tow n of Broussard. Present at the m eeting were M r. John M orehead, Senior Investigative 
A uditor, M r. S. D upree Parker, A uditor in Charge of the Tow n of Broussard investigation, 
and m yself. O ur m eeting was held to determ ine whether M ayor Langlinais had paid for 
equipm ent he had used. Further, w e wanted to get M r. D egueyter's com m ents regarding a 
contract between him  and M ayor Langlinais, 

M r. D egueyter m et w ith us and said that he has been doing business w ith file Tow n of 
Broussard for over ten years. H e told us that he had loaned idle equipm ent to M ayor 
Langlinais, and that he frequently loans equipm ent free of charge to good custom ers and 
friends. Further, M r. D egueyter told us that he did not recall what specific pieces of 
eq uipm ent M ayor Langlinais had used in the construction of his new hom e. H ow ever, he did 
recall that M ayor Langlinais used a CLM  backhoe. M r. D egueyter said that he also 
remembered loaning a dozer to M ayor Langlinais, which he (Langlinais) used at his camp. 

Further, M r. D egueyter said that he did not have records of these rentals since the em ployee 
responsible for this did not keep adequate records. H e further added that he term inated the 
em ployee, M r. R ichard Broussard. lle called his current renta l em ployee in to speak w ith us. 
flow eret, the em ployee w as unable to provide any records or additional inform ation. Further 
he said that the contract between him and the M ayor w as th e M ayor's idea. M r. D egueyter 
said he did not feel he needed a contract, but that M ayor Langlinais insisted. Furth erm ore, 
M r. D egueyter said that he really did not want the cypress logs th at the contract specified, but 
th at he hauled  them  to his place in Cade. M r. Degueyter said that he and M ayor Langlinais 
m et w ith D istrict Attorney M ichael H arson alxm t two or throe years ago to discuss th e contract 
betw een M ayor Langlinais and CLM  Equipm ent. 

Regarding M r. M itchell Scim em i, M r. D egueyter said that he did not have any renta l records 
docum enting M r. Scim em i's use of CLM  equipm ent. Further, M r. Degueyter said that M r. 
Seimemi did work for him on several projects and that M r. Seimemi wanted equipment use in 
exchange for his labor. He said that he (Degueyter) did not have any reco rds documenting 

t either 

ED BEFO R E M E this 14a~ day of February 2000 

C----Yd'n i fo r~  h a y~'~'- /  -"-'-'- 
A ttorflcy A t Law "~ 
M y com m ission expires at death. 
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E xhibit 12 

STATE O F LO U ISIA NA 
PARISH O F EA ST BATO N RO U G E 

A FFID A VIT 

BEFO RE M E TH E UNDERSIG NED AUTH O RITY PERSO NALLY CAIVIE A ND 
APPEARE D , S D U PREE PA RK ER , who said: 

On October 6, 1999, M r. Ernie Levy, Investigative Audit M anager, M r. John M orehead, 
Investigative Auditor, and I (S Dupree Parker, Investigative Auditor) interviewed M r. Floyd 
D egueyter in relation to our investigative audit of the Tow o of Broussard. 

M r. Degueyter told us that he had been doing business w ith the Tow n for over ten years and 
had occasion to rent and loan equipm ent to M ayor Charles Langlinais. He recalled renting 
equipm ent to M aynr Langlinais for work done at Langlinais Estates in th e developm ent of 
N ellie A cres subdivision. 

M r. D egueyter told us that he loaned M ayor Langlinais equipm ent for work on digging a poud 
at M ayor Langlinais' cam p and for work on M ayor Langlitmis' new house. M r. D egueyter 
stated that he did not keep any records of w hat equipm ent w as loancd or for how long. 
A ccording to M r. D egueyter, M r. Richard Broussard was Supposed tn keep track of equipm ent 
but had not done so. 

M r. Degueyter stated that he frequently loaned equipm ent that was not in use on weekends to 
friends and good customers. He stated  that he just as soon not worry about charging for the 
equipm ent because the eq uipm ent w ould not be used oth erw ise. M r. D egueyter recalled th at a 
dozer had to be delivered tn the M ayor's cam p, because it could not be driven on roads for thai 
distance. For the equipm ent used  at the M ayor's new house, the M ayor picked  up the 
equipm ent because it is a short distance from CLM  to the M ayor's house. 

M r. D egueyter did not see the need to have contracts, but th e M ayor insisted . M r. D egueyter 
statcxl that he and M ayor Lauglinais discussed tile M ayor's co ntract for the use of CLM  
equipm ent w ith M r. M ike H arson, D istrict Attorney. According to M r. D egueyter th e M ayor 
wanted to ensure th at it was all right to swap cypress logs for the use of equipment. M r. 
D egueyter stated that he really had no use for the cypress logs, but he hauled  them  out to his 

cam p anyway. 

Mr. Degueyter stated  that M r. M itch Scimemi had worked on several projects for him and by 

Seniorl~vestigafive Auditor 

the use of free equipnaent rental instead of paym ent 

SW O RN AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE M E this 14~ day of February 2000 

M y com m ission expires at death 
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E xhibit 13 

STATE O F I.O IIISIAN A 
PA RISH O F EA ST BA 'IO N RO [3G F2 

A FFID A VIT 

BEFO RE M E TH E U N D ER SIG N ED A U TH O R ITY PER SO N A1,LY CA M E AN D 
A PPEA R ED , JOH N L. M O REH EA D , who said: 

O n O ctober 6, 1999, Ernie Levy, Investigative A udit M anager, D upree Parker, Senior 
Investigative Auditor 1, and John M orehead, Senior Investigative Auditor I m et w ith M r. Floyd 
D egueyter, ow ner and C EO  of C LM  Equipm ent. The purpose of the m eeting w as  to find out 

if M ayor Charles Langlinais had paid for equipment that he (Langlinais) used during the 
construction of his (Langlinais') new home and to discover M r. Degueyter's knowledge of a 
contract that he had entered into w ith M ayor Langlinais. 

D uring the m eeting, M r. D egueyter stated that he has loaned equipm ent to M ayor Langlinais. 

M r. Degueyter stated that he just as soon not worry about charging friends for the use of 
equipm ent, because it w ould be sitting idle otherw ise. M r. D egueyter stated that he did not 
know how m uch M ayor Langlinais owes for the equipment that he (Langlinais) used while 
building his (Lan glinais') hon'le nor could he recall what specific pieces of equipm ent M ayor 
Langlinais had used. M r. D egueyter inform ed  us that a form er em ployee w as supposed  to 
keep track of the equipm ent that M ayor l.anglinais used. The person currently filling the 
position vacated inform ed us that he had no records indicating the equipm ent used by M ayor 
Langlinais or the am ount of tim e it w as used. M r. D egueyter did recall that M ayor Langlinais 
had used a backhoe. 

M r. D egueyter stated that M r. M itchel Scim em i had done som e w ork for him . M r. D egueyter 
further stated  that he has never paid M r. Seim em i for any of the services he provided because 
M r. Scim em i w anted the use of equipm ent as paym ent for services rendered. M r. D egueyter 
added the com m ent th at he loans equipm ent to good custom ers alm ost every week. 

M r. D egueyter inform ed us that he w as aw are of the contract that he had entered into w ith 
M ayor Langlinais. M r. D egueyter added that he did not see any reason to have the contract 
but M ayor Langlinais insisted on having it. M r. D egueyter further added  that he really did not 
have a need for the cypress logs that the contract provided but hauled them  to his cam p 
anyw ay. M r. D egueyter also confirm ed that he and M ayor Langlinais sought approval of the 

Senior Investigative A uditor 

H arsnn 

SW O RN AN D SUBSCRIBED BEFO RE M E this 14t~ day of February 2000 

M y com m ission expires at death 
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A ttachm ent IV  

L egal Provisions 





L egal Provisions 

The follow ing legal citations are referred to in the Findings and Recom m endations section of this 

report: 

R .S. 14:67 provides, in part, that theft is the m isappropriation or taking of anything of 
value which belongs to another, either w ithout the consent of the other to the 
m isappropriation or taking, or by m eans of fraudulent conduct, practices, or 

representations. 

R.S. 14:72 provides, in part, that forgery is the false m aking or altering, with intent to 
defi'aud, of any signature to, or any part of, any writing purporting to have legal efficacy. 

Issuing or transferring, with intent to defraud, a forged writing, known by the offender to 
be a forged writing, shall also constitute forgery. 

R.S. 14:134 provides, in part, that m alfeasance in offi ce is com m itted when any public 
officer or public employee shall (1) intentionally refuse or fail to perform any duty 
lawfully required of him, as such officer or employee; (2) intentionally perform any such 
duty in an unlawfial manner; or (3) knowingly permit any other public officer or public 
em ployee, under his authority, to intentionally refuse or fail to perform any duty law fully 
required of him or to perform any such duty in an unlaw ful m anner. 

R.S. 14:138 provides, in part, that payroll fraud is committed when (1) any person shall 
knowingly receive any paym ent or com pensation, or knowingly perm it his nam e to be 
carried on any em ploym ent list or payroll for any paym ent or com pensation from the 
state, for services not actually rendered by him self, or for" services grossly inadequate for 
the paym ent or com pensation received or to be received according to such em ploym ent 

list or payroll; (2) any public officer or public employee shall carry, cause to be carried, 
or perm it to be carried, directly or indirectly, upon the em ploym ent list or payroll of his 
office, the nam e of any person as em ployee, or shall pay any em ployee

, with know led ge 
that such em ployee is receiving paym ent or com pensation for services not actually 
rendered by said em ployee or for services grossly inadequate for such paym ent or 
com pensation. 

R.S. 42:1111(B) provides in part that no public servant shall receive anything of 
econom ic value from a vendor. 

R.S. 42:1112(B) provides in part that no public servant shall participate in a transaction 
involving the govern m enta l entity in which any m em ber of his im m ediate fam ily has a 
substantial econom ic interest. 
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R.S. 42:1115 provides that no public servant shall solicit or accept, directly or indirectly, 
anything of econom ic value as a gift or gratuity from any person or em ployee of any 
person who has or is seeking to obtain contractual or other business or financial 
relationships w ith the public servant's agency. 

R .S. 42:1116 provides that no public servant shall use the authority of his offi ce or 
position, directly oi" indirectly, in a m anner intended to compel oi" coerce any person or 
other public servant to provide him self, any other public servant, or other person w ith any 
thing of econom ic value. 

R.S. 42:1461(A) provides that offi cials, whether elected or appointed, by the act of 
accepting such office assum e a personal obligation not to m isappropriate, m isapply, 
convert, m isuse, or otherw ise wrongfully take any funds, property or other thing of value 
belonging to the public entity in which they hold office. 

A rticle 7, Section 14 of the Louisiana Coustitution provides that except as otherw ise 
provided by this constitution, the funds, credit, property, or things of value of the state or 
of any political subdivision shall not be loaned, pledged, or donated to or for any person, 
association, or corporation, public or private. 


